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A significant part of our club is 
our relationship with our sponsors 
and our partner. Our sponsors are 
highlighted throughout this report 
and, on behalf of the club and its 
members, I offer each of you a 
huge thank you for your continuing 
support of and contribution 
to our club.

Our ‘One Club, One Community’ 
vision is one that is shared by our 
valued partner, Maxima. From all 
of our members, thank you to the 
Hutton family and to Maxima –
The Opportunity Group for their 
continued support and partnership 
with the City of Perth SLSC.

Our Administration team has 
capably managed the growing 
demands of our business. 
Professionally led by Club Manager 
Patrick Anderson Loake, the team of 
Narelle Pyne, Kylie Leaman, Rachael 
Hughes, Matthew Whinnen, Leon 
Musca, Sonya Orso and Rosemary 
Fracaro form our Administration, 

Gym, Function and Catering team. 
Our skill base within the team is 
broadening and as the public 
face of our organisation they 
do a wonderful job with 
great enthusiasm.

The Executive team has 
maintained a regular meeting 
schedule to ensure that the 
variety of issues that face the 
management of a contemporary 
surf club are addressed. The 
Executive voluntarily offers time 
and expertise, and its direction 
and professionalism have been 
invaluable as we continue to grow 
as a club. A heartfelt thank you to 
Linda Walker, Angela Razvi, Robert 
Harper, Andrew Young, Helen 
Loake, Peter Scott, Damien Van 
Pelt, Ian Scott and our Club Captain, 
Gabrielle Murphy. Generous and 
competent people like this are 
the heart of our club. 

In closing, I would like to thank the 
Executive, the Administration, Gym, 
Function and Catering team, and 
each and every member of the club 
for your ongoing dedication. The 
ongoing support of our State body 
SLSWA is also acknowledged and 
greatly appreciated.

Once again it has been a privilege 
to serve as President of the City of 
Perth Surf Lifesaving Club in the 
2018/19 season and I look forward 
to the challenges and successes 
of the coming year.

Stephen Carrick
PresidentThe overall management of surf 

life saving clubs continues to 
evolve. This evolution is influencing 
and defining our culture as a 
contemporary surf life saving and 
community club as we move into 
the future. We have an ongoing 
focus on our relevance in the 
broader community with health 
and well being activities central 
to our strategic plan.

Our membership has grown to 
1,656 members in the last year. Our 
Administration team has done a 
wonderful job in ensuring our gym 
facility is kept in excellent condition 
and in implementing a range of 
initiatives to secure memberships: 
as a result, the training for seniors 
program and the early morning 
group training sessions continue 
to grow in popularity.

As in previous years, visitation to 
the City Beach precinct continues 
to grow and this has led to an 
increase in community expectations 
regarding the services we offer. 
There are more demands on our 
patrolling members with a more 
vigilant awareness of all beach 
activity required. Our patrolling 
members excelled and responded 
enthusiastically in meeting these 
expectations and maintaining 
high standards.

The standard of the volunteer 
service offered by the Club is a 
credit to every patrolling member. 
We had 20 Patrol Teams led by 20 
Patrol Captains who collectively 
play a vital leadership role within 
our club. It is important that 
we acknowledge the level of 
responsibility that this group 
voluntarily assumes on behalf 
of every member and the 
wider community.

Our ‘One Club One Community’ 
vision is an integral part of the 
way the club thinks about itself 
and operates, and is the basis 
from which we engage with 
the expectations of both our 
members and our community. 

The Club has engaged in local 
community events in association 
with our neighbour Floreat SLSC, 
including:

• Open water swim
• Anzac Day ceremony
• Youth Camp

We assisted the Rotary Club of 
Cambridge with its request for a 
host family from the Club and the 
Colliss family generously hosted 
a student from Argentina under 
the Rotary International Youth 
Exchange Programme.

Our Nipper section has seen an 
increase in membership and their 
presence has positively influenced 
the Sunday morning experience 
with The Galley, courtyard and 
promenade becoming a gathering 
place for club members.

We have had an increase in club-
managed and catered functions for 
a variety of users and we have also 
been able to assist other health and 
community focused groups seeking 
to use our facilities. Our focus 
on club-managed functions will 
continue to grow.

This year we successfully 
presented the Maxima Awards 
and Recognition Evening. There 
were over 130 club members and 
guests that formally recognised 
the achievements of their fellow 
members. Congratulations to Arthur 
Bajada for receiving the Best Club 
Member Award and to Phil Green 
whose outstanding service across 
a number of areas of club life was 
recognised as the recipient of the 
President’s Medal.

PRESIDENT 
REPORT

It is with pleasure that I present 
the 2018/19 Annual Report. 
We have been occupying our 
clubrooms for three years now 
and we continue to negotiate 
all of the opportunities of 
operating in this building.

1935 C.Bader *
1935 R.E.Gatherer *
1935 H.F.Bader *
1935 A.J.Levy *
1939 A.Peacock *
1943 J.Mayberry *
1944 R.L.Sanderson *
1945 M.McMillan *
1946 G.S.Parr *
1948 L.D.Jacks *
1949 H.M.Henderson *
1950 E.W.C.Jacks *
1951 O.E.Harmer *
1952 W.A.Mortimer *
1956 H.K.Riley mbe *

1960 W.R.Somerford *
1963 T.J.Hayden *
1966 G.Kino *
1966 R.B.Ramsay
1971 I.D.Scott oam
1971 J.Trethowan
1974 R.G.Roberts oam *
1975 E.R.J Mickle bm
1977 S.R.Jacks *
1980 J.F.Harbison *
1984 J.Leivers
1987 R.L.Groser
1988 S.Scott
1988 G.R.Trew
1989 R.E.Harper

1989 R.B.McRae *
1989 G.A.Mickle
1992 A.Collins
1992 K.E.J.Hogg
1992 I.D.McRae
1993 W.A.Jarman
1993 G.Leivers
1993 J.L.Pouleris
1995 L.M.Buchan
1997 R.B.Somerford
1998 D.Trew
2001 W.E.Gaynor oam
2001 J.H.O’Donoghue
2001 J.I.Scott
2004 P.C.Andrew

2004 J.C.Jardine *
2005 J.L.Scott
2005 R.F.Turner
2008 R.W.King
2010 M.L.Lowther
2010 G.S.Wilson
2012 P.L.Cohen
2012 B.D.Lilburne
2012 P.G.Waey
2015 M.A.Hughes
2015 G.R.Trew
2016 L.T.Kelly
2018 E.Gibbs

* Denotes deceased

PRESIDENT REPORT CONT...

LIFE MEMBERS

There is no Life Membership recipient during the 2018/19 season.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

During the 2018/19 Season our 
Executive Committee, led by 
Stephen Carrick, has provided our 
members of staff with assistance 
and direction towards clear goals. 
The Executive Committee’s 
leadership, from volunteer to 
more commercial operations, 
has been invaluable.

Congratulations to Stephen Carrick, 
our President, a worthy recipient of 
the Presidents Medal at the SLSWA 
2019 Awards of Excellence.

The Club’s staff are now primarily 
focused on the commercial side 
of our club. With the Gym and 
Function Center now providing the 
much-needed additional revenue to 
fund our beach operations, our club 
volunteers can continue to provide 
the premium life saving service at 
City Beach. Looking to the future 
we hope that these operations 
can also provide more for our 
surf sports program.

Matthew Whinnen and Leon Musca, 
our resident Exercise Physiologists, 
have joined the team during the 
2018/19 season. With our steady 
growth in membership they have 
done a great job in providing quality 
services and new initiatives to 
engage all cross sections of the 
community. Rachael Hughes has 
continued to build the function 
center and is developing our club’s 
name and venue in this space. Kylie 
Leaman and Narelle Pyne have been 
fantastic behind the scenes, smooth 
club operation can always be 
attributed to them both. Rosemary 
Fracaro and Sonya Orso have 

worked together well in the Galley. 
We hope, in the upcoming 2019/20 
season, that we can provide 
something special in the Galley 
that will keep our members 
coming back for more.

Alisa Pearson, Sophie Wulff, 
and their team of hard-working 
volunteers have done a great job 
holding the shop together this 
season. They worked hard to 
transition the club from Finz to Kozii 
bathers. From the admin team, we 
are grateful that you gave us our 
Sundays off whilst the club is full 
of club members, Thank you.

Our major sponsors; Maxima 
Opportunity Group, GPA Empire 
Village, and Metro Motors Holden 
have provided the club with much 
needed support throughout the 
2018/19 season and I hope that 
this can continue to develop 
through oncoming seasons.

The Town of Cambridge has 
been highly supportive of all new 
initiatives from our Club during the 
2018/19 season, from rocks on the 
beach to shark alarms. It is great 
to have such a positive relationship 
with the local authorities and 
hope this relationship can 
continue to grow.

I would like to finish with thanks 
to the club volunteers. Specifically, 
members who volunteer and 
organize fundraising events for our 
club. The Surf Ski Series, Cambridge 
Open Water Swim, Port to Pub, 
Chung Wah Cultural Festival, and 
many other similar events provide 
significant revenue that allows  
the club to operate. Thank you 
to all the members going above 
and beyond.

Patrick Anderson Loake
Club Manager

CLUB MANAGER REPORT

KEY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ITEMS
Income 2018/19 2017/18
- Membership & Gym fees $439,223 $386,396 
- Grants, Donations & Sponsorship $111,431 $171,059 
- Galley Members Lounge $87,117 N/A 
- Room Hire – functions $43,312 $40,689 
- Club Merchandise sales $34,020 $36,381 
- Events & Promotions $36,364 $44,093

Expenses 2018/19 2017/18 
- Employment expenses $282,930 $153,339 
- Administration $110,379 $91,837 
- Facilities $128,853 $149,682 
- Depreciation $150,953 $142,748

SPECIAL THANKS
I would like to personally thank:

• Patrick Anderson Loake, Narelle Pyne, Kylie Leaman, Sonya Orso, 
Rachael Hughes, Leon Musca and Matthew Whinnen for the great 
work they do supporting the Club and our members

• John and Bill Hutton for Maxima’s sponsorship and ongoing 
financial support

• Jane Scott and Tanya Andrew at Barnetts Bookkeeping for their 
accounting services and advice

• Alisa Pearson for managing the Club merchandise shop
• To all our sponsors and volunteers for their support to help make 

a great club!

Damien Van Pelt
Director of Finance

Despite growth in membership 
numbers, the Club made an 
operating loss of $10,213 for 
the 2018/19 financial year. 
Key highlights were:

• Total income received was 
$879,343 compared to  
$824,224 last year

• Income from membership fees 
is up on last year primarily due 
to higher Nipper registrations 
and an increase in gym 
memberships. Gym fees were 
$160,153 (up from $130,105 
in 2017/18), with expenses 
including staff costs of $119,930. 
The gym is also generating 
other income through personal 
training and massage services

• Sponsorship funding was 
significantly down on last year

• Expenses are higher than last 
year ($889,555 compared to 
$748,755 for 2017/18) primarily 
due to higher staff and 
administration costs 

• The Galley members lounge 
traded at a loss due to higher 
than expected staff costs and 
trial breakfast trading hours. 
Sales revenue was $87,117 with 
COGS of $50,676 and staffing 
costs of $64,100

• Expense control continues to 
be a focus for the Executive.
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DIRECTOR OF BUILDING SERVICES REPORT

Another interesting year ensuring 
the efficient operation of our 
building and surrounds. Whilst 
almost all happens behind the 
scenes, it never stops! Regular 
monthly inspections by Town 
staff have ensured we keep on 
top of all the issues.

We have been faced with 
continual maintenance and re-
jigging of the hot water system 
to ensure maximum service. For 
the past several seasons this 
has been handled through the 
good relationships between Greg 
Johnston and the suppliers, and 
it is pleasing the Town has now 
indicated they are taking over 
this task. 

Additional storage racking has been 
installed in the presently vacant 
kitchen areas to accommodate 
essential equipment, although 
these fill as fast as they are erected. 

Whilst a good idea at the time, we 
have realised the courtyard garden 
is just too difficult to maintain at 
a presentable level without an 
ongoing financial cost. 

A decision has been made to 
remove it over the winter months.

Our future major goals will include 
completion of the kitchen area, 
covering the courtyard area, and 
solving the continuing problem of 
the storage of equipment.

My personal thanks to the House 
Committee, Greg Johnston 
and Greg Trew, together with 
Kevin Hogg and Mark Holland. 
Their continued strong support 
throughout the year was greatly 
appreciated. 

I will not be nominating for the 
coming season, so take this 
opportunity to thank the officers 
from the Town of Cambridge, 
together with the members of both 
Executive and Beach Operations 
Committee for their strong support 
throughout the period since we took 
charge of our new club rooms.

Ian Scott 
Director of Building Services

The Club Captain position has been 
an opportunity to try new things, 
resurrect old traditions and to  
learn about the different areas 
of our club community. 

This season we tested a Sunset 
Club Championships, holding the 
event on a Friday evening. The 
prestige of the event was stepped 
up a notch with fantastic prizes 
for our Open and Youth champions 
donated by Brittany Huitenga on 
behalf of Roxy/ Quiksilver. We also 
had club prize packs awarded to 
Taylah Horsham and Helen Loake, 
whose effort and enthusiasm was 
worthy of recognition.

With burgers for dinner from the 
Galley and excellent participation, 
the Club Championships were a hit 
and a great example of a successful 
trial of a new approach to a 
traditional event. 

Another change we instigated was 
bringing the club swim forward 
half an hour to 8.30am, to give our 
Nipper parents an opportunity to 
participate. After little increase in 
swimmer numbers, the time was 
moved back to 9.00am. I do not see 
this as an unsuccessful venture 
because we have learnt from this 
experience and can plan the next 
season with more knowledge. I’d 
like to thank Peter Scott, Graham 
Wimbridge and the many others 
who helped run the club swims this 
season and encourage anyone who 
can help most Sunday mornings to 
put their hand up. 

The Club Captain can be so many 
things and is involved in every 
aspect of the club - it is a lot of 
work for one person. With so many 
opportunities to help and make our 
club great, delegating is essential. 
I have had so much help from so 
many people and thank them all 
enormously. There is always room 
for more assistance and to make 
the role of Club Captain and many 
others in our club effective, it 
takes many hands. Make one 
of them yours. 

I have loved being the Club Captain 
for the past four seasons and am 
proud of our club today. It is time 
for someone with fresh ideas, 
perspectives and passions to take a 
role and adapt it to improve our club 
and community in ways we don’t 
yet know. This 2018/19 season has 
seen highs and lows, success and 
learning and I can’t wait to see what 
the next season will bring. 

Gabrielle Murphy
Club Captain

CLUB CAPTAINS 
REPORT

What is the role of the Club 
Captain? In the past it has been 
a key role in the running of club 
operations and essential services 
such as patrolling. Today it is a 
role that is more about creativity 
and passion than ticking boxes. 
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The Galley 
The last twelve months have been 
very much a learning experience 
as the Club transitioned from 
The Galley being managed by a 
professional chef offering a service 
to members, to a system consisting 
of a supervisor and mixture of 
voluntary and paid staff.

The planning for the change was 
initiated prior to the last AGM and 
considerable planning and research 
was completed by Narelle Pyne 
and her team before the current 
Board of Directors was settled. The 
major outcome of work completed 
was the significant improvement of 
recording and reporting of income 
and expenses of Galley operations. 
A better financial understanding 
will ultimately lead to improved 
operations in the future.

Thursday and Friday morning 
Breakers Breakfasts were trialled 
with Saturday mornings added to 
the mix later in the Season. We will 
continue to work on service and 
offering to increase the engagement 
with these initiatives.

Our usual Friday evenings at 
the club were also lacking in 
atmosphere and attendance this 
season. With external food options 
initially trialled it was clear that 
it was not collecting the support 
of previous years and therefore, 
towards the second half of the 
season these food offerings were 
removed to simply offer the bar 
to members.

While we can control staffing and 
offering levels, one factor we can’t 
control is the weather. It was not 
kind to The Galley operations 
during the 2018/19 season and 
highlights the need for improved 
weather protection in the courtyard.

Gym Services 
Mathew Whinnen initiated an O/60s 
program for both Club and members 
of the community. The initiative 
has been well supported by both 
groups and furthers our goals of 
community involvement as well as 
increased member services. This 
initiative meets one of the Club’s 
goals of involving the community, 
as well as promoting an active and 
healthy lifestyle. It is also a source 
of much needed income. 

Leon Musca, an Exercise 
Physiologist and masseur, has 
joined our staff and both of his 
services have been well supported 
and receive positive reports. 
 
The exercise classes conducted 
in mornings are also being well 
supported by the membership. 
Over time, more classes will be 
introduced as our active gym 
membership is growing, and 
so is the demand. A healthy 
lifestyle is something the club will 
continue to strive to provide for 
our membership. Physiotherapy 
services will be investigated and 
introduced when appropriate.

The Club is broadening its focus 
and beginning to strive for true 
financial independence. Patrols, 
education and surf sports is our 
core business however, the world 
is changing. We must evolve with 
it to have successful operations 
and maintain our safe beach 
environment.

Robert Harper
Director of Membership Services & 
Infrastructure

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES REPORT

2018/19 MEMBERSHIP STATISTICS

Total
Probationary 13
Junior (5-13 yrs) 520
Cadet (13-15 yrs) 60
Active (15-18 yrs) 63
Active (18 yrs +) 144
Award Member 13
Reserve Active 6
Long Service 68
Associate 334
Life Member 35
General 395
Honorary 2
Non Member Participants 2
Leave / Restricted 1

1656

13



All key positions were filled on 
the Beach Operations Committee 
which resulted in growth and 
consolidation in equal measures. 
The non-voting positions of Chair 
and Secretary were once again 
taken by Chris Murphy and Susan 
Carrick, many thanks for keeping 
us on track during meetings and 
providing all the necessary support.

The Drone Patrol has gained 
traction this season thanks to 
Westpac sponsorship, great 
support from Rob Lund, SLSWA 
and a small but very keen group of 
budding Pilots. Early in the season 
4 members were put through their 
training with Global Unmanned 
Services (GUS) followed by 2 more 
after Christmas. Progress was slow 
for these pilots to become signed 
off due to lack of mentors but with 
more fully accredited pilots in the 
club this should not be an issue 
going forward. We are now in a 
very strong position to fly into next 
season with regular drone coverage 
of morning patrols.

The IRB “family” has once again 
been outstanding throughout the 
season providing an essential limb 
to life saving at the Club. They 
are true examples of “clubbies” 
providing education opportunities, 
providing help at our external 
fundraising events, providing 
support on Sunday mornings as 
well as competing in a variety of 
arenas and being around of Friday 
evenings to support the Galley.

The new Education Officers ensured 
that a strong base was created to 
allow for a more comprehensive 
planned programme next season. 

Patrols continued to provide a 
first class service to the visitors to 
City Beach. Thank you to all our 
volunteers who remain proficient 
and patrol weekend in and weekend 
out from October to April.

On a cold August morning our life 
savers donned their wetsuits to help 
out at the inaugural Dare to Care – 
Swim for Conquer Cystic Fibrosis, 
thank you to the small team for 
volunteering to help CFWA raise 
much needed funds for research.

We received vital funds by 
supplying water safety for various 
external events including:

• Rottnest Triathlon. 
• Port to Pub.
• Town of Cambridge Open 

Water Swim.
• Chung Wah Cultural Festival –  

Dragon Boat Racing, Burswood.
• Chung Wah Cultural Festival – 

Lantern Launching, Burswood.

Without the dedication and 
commitment of a few members we 
would struggle to supply enough 
lifesavers to cover these events. 
We need more members to step up 
and volunteer to help with these 
fundraising events and are currently 
looking at ways to get more 
members involved.

Despite being three years post 
build, stones and rocks were an 
issue early in the season. Once the 
Town of Cambridge understood 
the extent of the problem they 
provided a regular beach and sand 
cleaning operation which alleviated 
the problem to some extent. This 
allowed Sunday morning activities 
to move further north, allowing 
better and safer access for vehicles 
down the ramp to the beach. 
By next season I’m sure some 
more rocks will have raised 
their ugly heads!

I would especially like to thank 
those involved in Beach Operations 
this season:

• Matthew Slattery and Phil 
Green, Education.

• Arthur Bajada, Tim Speer &  
Mike Lowry, Mobile Services.

• Nat Speer, First Aid.
• Graham Wimbridge, Patrols.
• The Drone Pilots.
• Nicholas Scott, Radios.
• Mark Anderson, Equipment & 

Board maintenance.
• Administration team.

Helen Loake 
Director of Beach Operations

BEACH OPERATIONS REPORT
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The City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club Youth (U14s-U17s) 
had a highly successful season 
in many aspects of the club, 
from competitions to education, 
volunteering to patrolling, and 
everything in between. 

The objectives of our Youth 
programme follow those of the 
Club - ‘One Club, One Community’. 
The Youth Committee believe in 
providing a safe environment 
where our Youth members can 
experience as many aspects 
of the surfclub as possible. 
We provide many opportunities 
around fitness, fun, competition, 
friendship, development and 
community service. 

There were 93 Youth signed up for 
the 2018/19 season which was an 
increase of 16% from the previous 
year. For two consecutive years 
there has been an increase in 
Youth memberships at City of Perth 
SLSC. Our objective is to continue 
to increase Youth memberships 
each year by providing interesting 
programmes based around 
our objectives. 

Youth members continue to play a 
significant role in assisting with club 
activities from helping in the Galley 
on a Sunday morning, providing 
Nipper water safety and providing 
important water safety at major 
public events such as the Triple S 
Ski Series, the Port to Pub and the 
recent Dragon Boat Festival. 

The season started with different 
sections of the club coming to 
talk to the Youth as part of the 
Youth Information Session. Many 
of the Youth are transitioning from 
Nippers or are new to the club so 
these sessions are very important 
to learn about what the club offers 
for the Youth. It also enabled the 
Youth to meet coaches and athletes 
from these different sections such 
as competition, surf boats, IRBs, 
Champion Lifesaver and First Aid.

Early in the season, the Youth 
enjoyed the Wellness Day which 
included a HIIT session with 
Matthew Whinnen from the gym. 
Our Club Captain, Gabrielle Murphy 
came to talk to the group about the 
upcoming World Surf Lifesaving 
Championships that were held in 
November 2018 and the challenges 
with working and training. Many 
local businesses provided healthy 

options for the Youth to try and we 
appreciate their ongoing support. 

 ‘Have a Go’ days continued, and 
Youth members had a chance to 
try IRBs, surf boats and surf skis. 
The ‘Have a Go’ day with the IRBs 
continue to be very popular with the 
Youth and we are very appreciative 
of their ongoing support. The 
‘Have a Go’ day for surfboats and 
surf skis was conducted at Matilda 
Bay with strong support from the 
surf ski coaches and the surf boat 
section of the club. These days are 
important for the Youth members to 
experience different aspects of the 
club that they may wish to join.

Many club members nominated for 
the U14/U15 TOAD Camp with a 
record 4 City of Perth U14s being 
selected to attend - Ben Adams, 
Joshua Boulton, James McNiff and 
Dylan Poole. Two U17s, Tamsyn 
Ireland, Meng Houng Chroek were 
selected for the U17s Rise Up Camp. 

The City of Perth SLSC Club was 
very proud to be involved with the 
inaugural City of Perth and Floreat 
Surf Life Saving Club Youth Camp 
held in January 2019. Members from 
City of Perth SLSC that attended 
were: Grace Young; Elinor Webster; 

Ashley Eldon, Charlotte McDermid; 
Sophie Baron-Hay; Sienna Greig 
and Sihan Shen. Activities were 
held at both clubs with many City of 
Perth coaches and athletes running 
several sessions during the camp.

During the season, 23 Youth gained 
their Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) 
qualification and began patrolling 
for the first time this season. 
In addition, 14 Youth achieved 
their Bronze Medallion. These 
qualifications are a major focus 
for the Youth programme and a 
platform for greater involvement 
within the club.

The Youth continued to have many 
successes in carnivals competing 
in local and country carnivals, the 
Surf League series, the States and 
the Aussies. Five Youth members 
were announced as part of the 
Western Suns Development Squad. 
For the second year Alex Slocombe 
(U15) and Imogen Herrington (U15) 
were selected and three U14s 
were selected: Nathan Hunt; Owen 
Lilleyman and Alice Williams.

Grace Young (U14) was awarded 
the SLSWA Youth Club Achiever 
Award for City of Perth SLSC. Also, 
congratulations to Paige Bajada and 

Riley Walker for being nominated for 
the SLSWA Awards of Excellence 
Young Volunteer of the Year 
and Thomas Noordzy who was 
nominated for the Youth Lifesaver 
of the Year.

During the season, the Youth 
Involvement Programme (YIPS) 
was amalgamated with the SLSWA 
Youth Leadership Programme 
(YLP). Seventeen U14s achieved 
their Bronze, 10 U15s achieved their 
silver and a record 5 U17s achieved 
their gold award. It was great to see 
that this season many members, 
both new and old to the club, were 
working towards their points. These 
achievements are recognised at the 
Youth Awards ceremony at the end 
of the season at the club rooms.

Special congratulations to the 
finalists and winners of the Club 
Youth Awards this season.

U14 –  Sophie Baron-Hay, Holly 
Fraser, Nathan Hunt, Alice 
Williams, Grace Young. 
Winner – Sophie Baron-Hay

U15 –  Imogen Herrington, Zai 
McCabe, Ayesha Razvi, Sara 
Shular, Alex Slocombe. 
Winner – Imogen Herrington

U17 –  Meng Houng Chroek, Mia 
Fraser, Grace Kent, Thomas 
Noordzy, Ava Smedley. 
Winner – Thomas Noordzy

U19 –  Paige Bajada, Matt Colliss, 
Ethan Jackson, Sophie 
Lloyd, Riley Walker, Georgia 
Williams. 
Winner – Paige Bajada

The end of the season ended on 
a high with the inaugural Youth 
Boat Challenge that saw the Youth 
constructing many varying types of 
craft – some were more seaworthy 
than others. We look forward to next 
year’s challenge.

The Youth subcommittee is made 
up of a highly experienced team 
who mentor each of their age 
groups and bring years of surf 
experience. Special thanks to 
Michael Jorgenson (U17s), Heath 
McCabe (U15s), Karin Hunt (U14s), 
Mirella Tarulli and Farook Razvi.

Thanks for a great season.

Angela Razvi
Director of Youth

YOUTH 
REPORT
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We kicked off the 2018-19 season 
on the last Sunday in October with 
our mission of providing a happy, 
safe and fun environment for all. We 
also had the bonus of receiving 18 
new foam nipper boards from AGL. 
These are highly beneficial for our 
nippers, especially our younger age 
groups who are new to paddling a 
nipper board.

Our Nipper parents dove head first 
into the Nipper Rescue Certificate 
qualification with record numbers 
completing their water safety 
qualification. Our procedures for 
signing on for water safety this 
year have improved remarkably 
with all of the water safety hours 
now captured and recorded by our 
wonderful administration team. 
Well done everyone!

In late November our Nippers 
headed up to Scarborough SLSC 
for the annual “Jacko Day”. The 
Scarborough “Urchins” put on a 
great morning with the City 
Nippers retaining the Jacko Title.

December saw the first of the 
Nipper Carnivals and again we 
ran the Nipper Training Camp 
in the first week of the summer 
school holidays. Once again it was 
a massive hit with the kids. The 
U8’s & U9’s joined in on the Friday 
morning for a few fun relays and big 
cook up breaky to finish! Thank you 
to our Surf Sports Director, Linda 
Walker, who assisted in organising 
the coaching and a big thank you 
to all the coaches, senior and junior 
members and all the breakfast crew 
who volunteered your time.

In January, a small but dedicated 
crew headed down south to 
Denmark for the Country Carnival. 
Denmark SLSC put on a great 
weekend of events with our City 
Nippers braving the chilly waters, 
long banks and big waves showing 
some true City spirit.

The U8 & U9 Little Nippers State 
Titles were held at Sorrento Beach 
in early March. It was great to 
see so many of our Little Nippers 
having a go and giving it plenty! 
The Nipper State Titles followed 
a couple of weeks later and again 
they all did themselves proud. 
City finished a creditable 4th in 
the overall points score. Special 
mention to Emma Rogers & Jorja 
Van Pelt (U13’s) who won City’s 
first medal (Silver) in the Nipper 
mixed R&R and to Rory Wallace 
(U13) who was awarded the Club 
Achiever Award for outstanding 
club contributions to lifesaving.  
Well done to Rory, a very  
deserved recipient.

The Nipper training and 
competition this season has 
highlighted many positive elements 
with our Nipper training programs 
and identified a few areas where 
we can definitely improve in the 
future. I believe it is essential, as 
a club, we provide a balance of 
opportunities for those Nippers that 
wish to develop lifesaving skills and 
for those that want to improve their 
competitive outcomes through surf 
sports. This coming year will be 
an opportunity for the committee 
to look at how we can continue to 
increase our participation numbers 
in all areas of surf sports, develop 
and encourage volunteer Nipper 
coaches as well as provide our 
Nippers with the fundamental  
Surf Life Saving Skills.

As always, we finish the summer off 
with the annual Nipper Marathon. 
For once, the Conditions were 
perfect and everyone finished the 
course with a smile on their face. 
A few also managed to complete 
the course wearing fancy dress!

Thank you to everyone who has 
contributed to the Nippers over 
the season. I look forward to plenty 
more fun and good times down the 
beach next season.

Andrew Young 
Director of Junior Activities

The 2018-19 season will certainly be 
looked back on as a memorable one. 
In comparison to previous years, the 
weather gods were smiling on our 
Nippers and we were all able to enjoy  
the majority of Sundays in relatively  
fair conditions.

It has been another massive year for 
our City Nippers. This year with the 
introduction of the Under 6 age group 
assisting in our total of 500 nippers 
officially registered! This is a massive 
achievement for the Club. To all the 
nipper committee members, age group 
managers and their assistants, Thank 
you for all your hard work, time and 
support throughout the whole year. It 
truly is a pleasure to work with such a 
strong group of dedicated volunteers.

To all of our coaches, IRB crews, water 
safety, competition officials and BBQ 
volunteers we also say a massive thank 
you. Our Nipper program cannot function 
without the ongoing commitment of 
parents/carers who are able and willing 
to put in the many hours of hard work 
that it takes to make it all happen.  
Thank You!

There are several parents and  
volunteers that go above and beyond 
and it is almost impossible to thank  
you all individually. 

A special mention goes to the following:

• Ben Rogers & Jo DeMarchi our 
outgoing Under 13 Age Group 
Managers. Thank you for everything 
you have done for the City Nippers 
and good luck with the youth 
program.

• Anthea Redding and Darren 
Westphal for stepping into the 
unknown and taking on the Under 
6’s this year. You both deserve a 
medal!

• Mark “Stewy” Stewart, Travis 
England and Clay Dorrington for all 
the hours of coaching down at the 
beach and on the river.

• Mike Lowry and the IRB crews. For 
the countless hours of water safety 
on Sundays and at Nipper Carnivals. 
Thank you.

JUNIOR ACTIVITIES REPORT

The Masters surf sports section at 
City of Perth had a good 2018/19 
season, with some standout results, 
despite a much smaller team than in 
previous seasons. Overall Masters 
numbers State-wide were noticeably 
down - perhaps a hangover from the 
huge effort put in last season with 
the Aussies here in WA.

We had Masters competing in their 
age groups in the State Endurance 
Champs in November, in Masters 
States and in Masters Aussies over 
on the Gold Coast. Additionally, 
several of our Masters competed 
in a few senior carnivals as well as 
representing the club in the WA 
Surf League series, throughout 
the season in the WA Surf Rowers 
League, and at the Open States and 
Aussies carnivals. 

To those club members who joined 
us in competition for the first time 
this season - thank you for joining 
the club, gaining your Bronze 
Medallion and representing the 
club with pride. We also very much 
appreciate those who compete year 
after year – it’s so important to have 
that core body to provide continuity 
and help the rookies out. 

Many of our Masters competitors 
take on extra duties in the club, be 
it coaching, on committees, or as 
officials. Thanks to all who gave up 
their time to help throughout the 
season. Big thanks to Linda Walker 
who supported the Masters section 
all season, the IRB team and  
first-aiders/water safety people who 
filled rosters at Masters carnivals 
so we could compete. 

Despite small numbers at both 
States & Aussies, the team 
showed City grit to come away 
with medals. At Masters States 
all the competitors came home 
with a medal! Kudos to those who 
competed in team events outside 
their comfort zone.

Outstanding performances that 
showed true City values came from 
Glen Boddy, who despite coming 
off a severe illness, competed in 
every event he possibly could. 
The veritable City Black boat crew 
(Steve Bowler, John Foster, Shane 
Bowler, Marc Goodall and Todd 
Bowler) continued to compete with 
success at both masters and open 
level in States and Aussies. 

Sharan Colliss was the standout 
performer at Aussies Masters, with 
a swag of medals (helped by some 
very able teammates).

Not only did individuals and 
teams achieve some outstanding 
results, but we introduced new 
competitors to the sport, had a fun 
time, and thrived being part of the 
City Masters team. Thanks to all 
involved for the great team spirit 
shown, and the commitment to be 
back next year. We hope that all 
those that competed can get the 
word out to friends and family, 
so we can be bigger and better 
next season.

Emily Chetwin and Adrian Hirsch
Masters Surf Sports Coordinators

MASTERS REPORT
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SURF SPORTS REPORT SURF LEAGUE REPORT

This year our club competitors 
competed in a diverse range of 
disciplines achieving our fantastic 
results in the 2018/19 season. 
We celebrate all competitors’ 
achievements and strive to continue 
to enhance all arenas for the new 
season ahead.

The surf sports season started in 
the winter of 2018. The focus again 
this season is to make training 
opportunities more inclusive for 
all our competitors and members. 
Through workshops, committees 
and meetings we implemented the 
following focus points:

1. Focus on single discipline 
training

2. Defined and easy access to 
the single discipline training 
timetable

3. Training sessions to be more 
inclusive for all ability levels

4. All coaches to be accredited and 
qualified under SLSA guidelines

5. All coaches to have a WWC
6. Senior competitors assisting 

nipper and youth competitors
7. Creation of pathways for 

competitor and coach 
development

8. Increasing engagement in 
arenas with less competitors.

The lifesaver relay is a testament 
to how strong a club is over all 
disciplines. For this event we were 
well represented showing off the 
true depth of our male and female 
senior club competitors. The 
discipline consists of all surf races: 
boat, board, ski, swim, and sprint 
all combined into one continuous 
relay race. City entered 3 teams into 
the State Championships all having 
fantastic final placings. 

Thanks to Ben Carrick for his 
strategic team selection to give our 
competitors a chance at creating 
the best outcomes.

State Championship highlights- 
2018/2019 season include:

• Bronze ,4th and 5th places in 
the Lifesaver relay. 

• Matt Colliss, Riley Walker and 
Ethan Jackson U19 water high 
achievements and endurance 
over the weekend.

• Open female beach relay final 
having 3 x City relay team 
finalists.

• Silver place in the surf boat 
relay.

• Dominance in the First Aid 
States competition.

• Success in Champion 
Lifesaver for veterans and new 
competitors.

• Increase in R & R States entries.
• Increase in Pool Rescue and 

Surfing medallists.

These highlights culminated in 
City finishing in 2nd place. 
Well done City.

Our competitors even excel on the 
international stage:

• Bronze, Open Female Flags - 
Gabrielle Murphy

• Silver, Open Female 2 X 1km 
Beach Relay - Amy Murphy and 
Holly Noack.

Our competitors would not have 
the opportunities to compete 
without: competition officials, 
representatives from the surf  
sports committee, IRB section,  
and our coaches. You have once 
again been outstanding.

Along with photographers taking 
incredible action shots, thank you 
all for the major contribution to 
surf sports this season.

I am retiring from my Director of 
Surf Sports role this season and 
do so with a smile on my face 
knowing that one cannot achieve 
great things without great people 
surrounding you.

Personally, I wish to thank:

• Andrew and Isabella Walker for 
their help and support for the 
entire year.

• Ben Carrick as Assistant Surf 
Sports officer.

• Stephen Carrick and Ian Scott 
for words of wisdom and advice.

• Executive and Beach committees 
for their continuous support. 

Thank you for always asking the 
best question “How can I help?”.
One Club One Community.

Linda Walker
Director of Surf Sports

After the most successful Surf 
League campaign yet, City of Perth 
could very well be labelled as the 
top Surf Sports club on the West 
Coast. We came away with first 
places in not 1 but all 3 of the Surf 
Leagues this season and not a bad 
placing for our second team to boot. 

The Surf League events are set out 
to showcase a surf clubs diverse 
and cohesive competitors and 
coaches across all aspects of boats, 
1km run, beach sprint, beach flags, 
surf race, board, ski, taplin and 
cameron team racing. The teams 
are inclusive of youth, opens and 
masters competitors and our City 
Black and Red teams did our One 
Club Community team justice when 
time and time again, coordinators 
rallied, old competitors dusted off 
their competition caps and new 
competitors shone. 

The way everyone conducted 
themselves no matter how 
uncomfortable, unfamiliar or under 
the weather they felt, every city 
competitor did themselves, their 
team and their club proud.

Honorable mentions go to Kiera 
Albertsen and Matt Colliss who 
of the back of their outstanding 
performances at surf League events 
were given the opportunity to 
compete at Round 6 of the Ocean 
6 Series, on Friday 22 and Saturday 
23 February at North Cronulla, NSW. 
This trip was fully funded by Surf 
Life Saving WA and we are very 
proud of these overall winners and 
great club members.

Marshalling, officialling and 
coaching are the backbone for 
any of these events and City of 
Perth is so lucky to have many 
members willing to donate their 
time and skills to the cause so we 
can have a chance to compete 
like we do. Big thank you to all of 
you for everything! With every win 
securing the club a $3000 prize, all 
competitors, coaches and officials 
alike should give yourselves a 
mighty big pat on the back for all 
your efforts. Go City!

Many thanks. 

Linda Walker & Ben Carrick
Director of Surf Sports and 
Assistant Director/ Coordinator of 
Surf League
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LIFE SAVING REPORT 

Patrols once again serviced our 
beach throughout the summer 
with distinction. There was a good 
injection of new bronze and SRC 
members this season to add to the 
mix of our patrol teams. It was a 
long patrolling season, starting in 
October and finishing on the last 
weekend in April. Overall it was a 
mild summer with not too many of 
those stinking hot summers days.

Thanks to the Patrol Captains 
once again for the great leadership 
shown to their patrol. This was 
the final season for a number of 
our Patrol Captains who have 
completed 10 years of patrolling. 

The bond that developed between 
Montana Ardon, Brittany Huitenga, 
and Zoe Leunig and their respective 
team members over the last season 
was evident on the last few patrols.

During the season, Patrols 
responded to numerous first 
aid situations. A more common 
situation this season was sting ray 
or cobbler stings. There was also 
the usual shoulder, arm and wrist 
dislocation and sprains. We have 
had a couple of visits from snakes 
along the steps to the beach and 
ramp this season.

After Xmas Patrol teams ran 
through first aid and rescue 
scenarios. All Patrols responded 
to the scenarios well and 
demonstrated a good level of 
competency. The feedback from 
Patrol members about doing the 
scenarios was positive and it is 
something that will continue 
next season.

In summary, the Club is indebted 
to all Patrol members and we 
recognise every member’s 
commitment to make our beach 
safer. At the same time, there aren’t 
too many better ways to spend your 
time than eating one of Bridgette 
Darragh’s homemade biscuits in 
the patrol shelter while overlooking 
the City Beach surf on a warm 
summers day.

Thanks to all patrolling members. 
See you next season.

Graham Wimbridge 
Life Saving Coordinator
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BEACH ARENA REPORT CONT...

As expected, everyone gave their 
all. There’s a saying that the even 
numbered placings are the most 
annoying (2nd and 4th). 

By the end of the weeks’ competition, 
we seemed to be cursed with being 
experts on the number 4, with 4 
fourth places. However, when you put 
it in context, that’s a pretty impressive 
result: 4th in Australia in 4 different 
events and a total of 8 top ten 
finishes. Not bad for a little club 
from the west. It certainly provides 
a lot motivation moving forward 
into next season.

As is the norm in sport, there were 
a number of obstacles to overcome 
leading into and at Aussies. But every 
one stepped up and performed to 
their absolute limit. Whilst the results 
listed below may not contain the 
medallists that have been produced in 
the past, they do contain impressive 
back stories of perseverance, 
strength and determination. 

Again, the results from our young 
competitors in Mia Fraser (4th Under 
17 flags), Imogen Herrington (4th 
Under 15 Sprint) and Holly Fraser 
(8th in Under 14 flags) stands us in 
good stead going forward.

Thanks to Brittany Huitenga for her 
help with the youth championships, 
and Brett Slocombe for helping 
everywhere; the youth, the opens, 
physio and assistant coach.  
See Aussie titles results on page 39

Season 2020 
Our female beach competitors are 
going from strength to strength. 
We have depth of talent from 
Open through to Youth. Without 
trying, we continue to attract and 
grow competitors in this area. 
Unfortunately the same can’t be 
said for the men’s side of things. 
That’s an area we need to work on.

All up, things are looking very good 
for next season. Special thanks to 
the following:

• Linda Walker; your hard work 
and commitment will be hard to 
replace. Thanks for all the work 
you’ve done as Director of Surf. 
Sports over the past few seasons.

• Brett Slocombe; gym program 
manager, assistant coach and 
physio all in one.

• Meaghan Carrick; doing an 
awesome job with the “2K” 
group and also physio to 
hold us together.

• Chris and Pam Murphy; always 
there to help whenever needed.

• Meredith Buchan; for putting up 
with all the time I’m not at home.

Leigh Buchan & Meaghan Slattery 
Coaches

BEACH ARENA 
REPORT

Attendees:

• Amy Murphy - 2km run and 
2 x 1km Relay.

• Holly Noack - 2 x 1km Relay  
and Beach Relay.

• Gabrielle Murphy - Beach Relay, 
Sprint and Flags.

• Brittany Huitenga - Beach Relay, 
Sprint.

• Emily Longo - Beach Relay, 
Sprint and Flags.

• Chris Murphy - Manager.
• Leigh Buchan - Coach.

Being based in Australia, the standard 
of competition was very high. 
The final washup of results was: 

• 2nd place 2 x 1km Relay - Amy 
Murphy & Holly Noack. 

• 3rd place Women’s Beach 
Flags - Gabby Murphy. 

• 4th place Women’s Relay - 
Gabrielle Murphy, Brittany 
Huitenga, Holly Noack,  
Emily Longo. 

• 4th Women’s 2K Run -  
Amy Murphy.

• 6th Women’s Beach Sprint - 
Gabrielle Murphy. 

• 11th Women’s Beach Sprint - 
Brittany Huitenga.

As always, the girls did the club 
proud. Congratulations to Holly and 
Amy (and 2K coach Meaghan Carrick) 
on a great result. Gabby Murphy 
has become the club’s unofficial 
international ambassador, with this 
being her 4th world championships. 
Gabby’s 3rd in the flags maintained 
her perfect record of medalling at all 
Worlds she’s been to.

2018-19 Season 
There were a number of changes this 
season. Our Tuesday night training 
venue moved from Jubilee Park 
to Perry Lakes. Weekend sessions 
moved to Saturday mornings to 
accommodate the earlier start time 
of the club swim on Sundays, and 
Sunday became a short, dedicated 
flags session. Thursdays remained 
at the track, and Brett Slocombe 
continued to set and monitor our 
gym sessions. Meaghan Carrick again 
ran the “fitness” group to cater for 
anyone from nippers to masters who 
didn’t necessarily want to compete 
but did want to have a training group 
to belong to. This group again proved 
very popular and encouraged many 
members to have a go.

We were also fortunate to have new 
recruits Jacki Lord from Sorrento and 
very late in the season, Sophie Watts 
and Eliza Wilson from Scarborough 
and Julia Dwyer from Binningup. 
This gave us the depth to give 
exposure to a number of competitors 
during the three rounds of the 
Surf League, including some of our 
younger runners. Along with members 
from Meaghan Carrick’s group, City 
had the numbers to field three open 
women’s relays at States and two 
teams at Aussies.

The 2019 State Championships 
were one of the groups more 
successful. There were some fantastic 
results, particularly from the youth 
competitors who are the foundation 
for the future of the squad. The 
only negative is still the lack of 
male runners.

2019 Aussies 
City Sprint had a team of 11 
contesting the 2019 Aussies. 

• Masters - Penny Cohen
• U14 - Holly Fraser
• U15 - Imogen Herrington
• U17  - Mia Fraser
• U19 - Julia Dwyer
• Open - Amy Murphy; Gabrielle 

Murphy; Brittany Huitenga; 
Jackie Lord; Emily Longo; 
Sophie Watts

WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
 
The competitive season kicked 
off early for City Sprint, with the 
squad representing City at the 
World Lifesaving Championships, 
held at Glenelg, South Australia, 
over late November-early 
December 2018.
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R & R AND MARCH PAST REPORT

WATER ARENA REPORT

This past season our team 
continued their improvement, 
gaining placings at all inter-
club carnivals. However it was 
disappointing that we were 
relegated to fourth place at 
the States. 

As I have continually said, our 
overall marching still just lacks 
the overall “wow” factor and 
consistency across all the sections. 
Nearly there, but not quite!

The team marched at this year’s 
Queensland Aussies, putting on 
a good show and finishing in the 
middle of a high quality field. 

Again, our team reserves deserve 
special mention for their support at 
all competitions and in particular 
the Aussies. A very last-minute 
flight to Queensland by Angela 
Razvi to replace Helen Loake 
was incredible, and greatly 
appreciated by us all. 

Again, appreciation to Peter 
Scott (Denise’s husband) and 
Farook Razvi for filming the team 
at training and carnivals; and 
particularly to Chris Murphy and 
Jane Scott as specialist judges in 
our event throughout the season. 

R&R coach Farook Razvi worked 
tirelessly during the season both 
promoting the event, and training 
our sole two person team. It was a 
delight when the girls gained their 
silver medal. With renewed interest 
and understanding of the team and 
lifesaving aspect, we look forward 
to increased numbers in this event 
next year. Thank you Farook.

Ian Scott 
Coach

Female Water 
Sophie Lloyd achieved outstanding 
individual and team results in both 
U19 and Open age groups. All ladies, 
from masters to Under 17 competed 
at a high standard in all events over 
the weekend. Comment must be 
made for the fantastic efforts 
from Nicky Scott, Emily Chetwin, 
Sharan Colliss, Keira Albertson,  
Jess Hallett, Phoebe George, 
and Tamsyn Ireland.

Male Water 
Cody Baker and Kirby Jackson 
entered not only their U17 water 
events but any U19/open event 
that they could assist with.

Outstanding results from Riley 
Walker, Matt Colliss & Ethan 
Jackson in both Individual and team 
events. The three boys also aged up 
into open age groups to assist the 
club whenever required.

All three young men went around 
the cans about 20 times, including 
several rounds of Iron man races. 
Riley Walker was a standout 
claiming 8 Gold medals in the U19 
events. Laine Andrew and Josh 
Snook brought the City Team 
home with their Individual and 
team event dominance. 

Max Anderson Loake had the 
City supporters jumping high 
with his well earnt win in the surf 
race. Simon Huitenga, sporting a 
shoulder injury, committed to the 
team events leading Ben Carrick, 
Max Anderson Loake, and Mr 
Come Back Jack Retty to several 
fantastic results. These Open men 
also displayed great leadership and 
mentoring towards the City 
young guns.

 
 

Youth 
The future of our water arena is 
strong in both the male and female 
categories. Jackson Blom, Nathan 
Hunt and Drew Lilleyman have 
consistently made finals throughout 
the season. The hard training efforts 
throughout the season resulted in a 
medal in the Youth board relay. 

Alex Slocombe, Sophie Barron-
Hay, Alice Williams, Mia Nesbit, 
Mia Jackson, Grace Young, and 
Ashley Eldon have also made names 
for themselves throughout WA 
surf sports. Sophie Barron-Hay’s 
outstanding individual results are 
a testament to the strong training 
group surrounding her. Youth 
Female Team medals include, Surf 
teams, Cameron relay and Board 
relay. Congratulations ladies.

Linda Walker
Director of Surf Sports
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IRB REPORT

In the 2018/19 Season the IRB 
section continued to build its 
capability and sustainability. 
The highlights include:

Introduction of Jet Ski Operations 
The Club partnered with SLSWA to 
see a Jet Ski based at City of Perth. 
The Jet Ski has proved to be a very 
useful addition to the IRB fleet and 
has been successfully deployed on 
patrol, in several Club events and in 
supporting inter-club/SLSWA water 
safety during the Abalone Season.

Training & Proficiency 
Several IRB Driver and IRB Crew 
training courses have been 
successfully completed during the 
Season resulting in the sign-off 
of six new Drivers and thirteen 
Crew. This included supporting 
the development of members of 
neighbouring surf clubs who do not 
have the infrastructure or numbers 
to viably run their own training. 

It is pleasing to note that just under 
two-thirds of IRB Driver and Crew 
candidates signed off this Season 
are female. This both promotes 
the diversity of the section and 
reinforces the fact that IRB and  
Jet Ski operation is well within  
the reach of any Club member  
who aspires to these awards.  
The success of the IRB training 
program is also well demonstrated 
with more than ten IRB Crew 
currently at various stages of 
progress towards their IRB Driver 
Silver Medallion Award. 

An in-house Jet Ski course, 
facilitated by SLSWA, was also 
successfully completed during the 
Season. This resulted in the sign-off 
of seven RWC Operators. The IRB 
Section provided Assessors for  
in-house and inter-club IRB Driver 
and Crew assessments.

IRB Driver and Crew training 
continues. Planning is also 
underway for an intake of IRB 
Drivers to be trained and signed-off 
as RWC Operators over the next 
six months.

Provision of Water Safety Services 
The IRB Section was again a key 
contributor to intra- and inter-Club, 
SLSWA co-ordinated and external 
events, providing both IRB and Jet 
Ski water safety support including 
the following:

• Sunday Nippers & Club Swim. 
• SRC & Bronze Medallion 

Assessment & Requals.
• Junior & Senior Carnivals 

including State Championships.
• Aussies.
• Abalone Patrol.
• Sunset Surf Ski Series.
• Cambridge Open Water Swim.
• Port to Pub.
• Chung Wah Association Dragon 

Boat Racing & Lotus Flower 
Ceremony.

A number of these external events 
simultaneously generated income 
for the Club and promoted the 
City of Perth SLSC brand. It should 
be noted that the IRB Section’s 
involvement in Club activities 
extended well beyond the water 
with a number of the Team willingly 
volunteering to provide shore-based 
support for several events.

IRB Racing 
At time of writing, the IRB Racing 
Season is in full swing. City of 
Perth continues its association with 
Floreat SLSC in combined Race 
training and competition. The City 
component of the Racing Team 
is very much in a transition and 
consolidation phase. The aim is 
to increase participant numbers, 
particularly Drivers, to enable City 
to field its own teams at Racing 
competition next season whilst still 
training and jointly entering IRB 
racing carnivals with Floreat.

Another busy and successful 
Season for the IRB Section. Thank 
you to all IRB and Jet Ski personnel 
for their outstanding efforts. 
Particular thanks needs to go to the 
Section’s Trainers and Assessors for 
the great outcomes achieved. 

Special mention and thanks goes 
to Metro Motors Holden for yet 
again providing the Club with a 
support vehicle for the Season - 
without which beach operations 
would be severely restricted; and 
to SLSWA for its patronage in 
establishing Jet Ski operations 
at City of Perth SLSC.

Undoubtedly, the 2019/20 Season 
will be even bigger and better for 
the IRB Section and Club.

Tim Speer, Mike Lowry, 
Arthur Bajada, Phil Green 
Joint Mobile Services Officers

BOAT ARENA REPORT

Patrol teams were again kept busy 
this season with a total of 201  
first aid incidents.

There was 43 less incidents than last 
year which was attributed to the 29% 
decrease in minor marine stings.
There was however, an increase in 
major marine stings this season. 

A huge thanks to City Patrol teams 
for keeping the beach goers safe!

Natalie Speer
First Aid Officer

STATISTICS
201 first aid cases as follows:
7   Fractures/dislocations
1   Drowning 
7  Major Marine Stings
130  Minor Marine Stings 
3  Major Wounds
38   Minor cuts and abrasions
1  Shock
1   Spinal
13   Other

FIRST AID REPORT

This season saw a reduction in the 
number of crews competing (post 
Aussies Perth) but certainly not a 
reduction in quality and effort. We 
had 9 crews compete at the States, 
2 at the States Masters, 2 crews 
at the ASRL nationals, 2 crews at 
the Aussies, 1 crew at the Aussie 
Masters and 1 crew at the World 
Championships. It was always 
going to be difficult to have the 
same number of crews after the 
Aussie titles in W.A.

We achieved some outstanding 
results throughout the year, 
culminating in the Under 19 girls 
winning bronze at the Aussies. 
The results are listed on page 39 
in the report. One of the positive 
actions by the boat section was 
the development of two more 
sweeps in Paddy Anderson Loake 
and Tom Lowther. For our sport 
to continue to grow these are the 
significant developments that 
must be achieved. Both of their 
contributions led to great results 
for their crews.

With the great news of two new 
sweeps stepping up was the news 
that two of our best sweeps were 
stepping down. Geoff Wilson and 
Steve Bowler have brought the 
curtain down on their careers as 
competitive sweeps. 

Their achievements over the years 
are far too big to list here, but the 
section and club cannot thank 
them enough for their efforts. I am 
confident that all their knowledge 
and skill will be passed on to the 
developing sweeps. On a personal 
note, their dedication to our section 
and their support for my leadership 
has been invaluable.

We again focussed on the younger 
rowers at our club and Pete Waey’s 
effort to get an Under 23 men’s 
crew together must be commended. 
It is an area we need to focus on 
to balance out our crews and lay 
the foundation for the future. With 
Angela Razvi’s work in putting 
together another “have a go” day, 
we unearthed several younger club 
members that show distinct promise 
in boats. We certainly hope to entice 
them to our section. Big thanks 
to the boaties that gave up their 
Sunday morning to help.

Once again, none of us can compete 
without our officials. They do an 
outstanding job and we cannot 
thank them enough. We also need 
others to step up and become part 
of that area of competition.

Our sport is still under pressure 
to grow and remain an option in 
surf sports. There are numerous 
influences limiting its growth, but 
if we, as a club and movement, 
continue to offer a pathway for 
younger members surf boats have 
the opportunity for growth. The 
ASRL is an influential body that 
is working hard to grow our sport, 
thankfully we have a voice in that 
forum through Geoff Wilson and 
we hope he continues to advocate 
for WA crews.

I cannot finish this report without 
a mention of the ANZAC Day 
commemoration the boat section 
put together. It brought people from 
the community, club and services 
together for an unforgettable 
morning. Thanks to all the boaties 
who took the challenge to row out 
in the dark, Geoff Wilson for his 
commemoration, John Hanley for 
the Ode and Jen Bowden as our 
bugler. This event will only get 
bigger and better.

Plans are already being put in place 
for the 2019/20, and its looking like a 
beauty. One Club, One Community.

Malcolm Lowther 
Boat Captain
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EDUCATION REPORT

LIFE SAVING EVENTS & FIRST AID REPORT

The First Aid competition has been 
dwindling on the West Coast for 
several years, so for City’s First Aid 
Team, the 2018/19 season was all 
about building; building the team 
and building the momentum of the 
competition in WA. In the interest 
of providing strong competition for 
our own competitors, the invite was 
sent out to all WA metro clubs to 
join City’s weekly first aid training 
and we began recruiting more 
actively within our own club. The 
results were promising with City’s 
team doubling in size and training 
sessions seeing up to 22 members 
from across four different clubs. 

Come the State Championships, 
City was able to field teams in every 
age group, including four Opens 
teams. A long day of competition 
saw scenarios with injuries ranging 
from simple broken bones to 
difficult-to-deal-with drug affected 
patients. New recruits, Alicia Jones 

and Kate De Marchi, walked away 
with a silver medal in the U15s 
competition. Unfortunately, not 
enough teams were fielded in the 
U17s and U19s scenarios for points 
to be awarded, but each of these 
teams did themselves proud by 
aging up to compete in a tough 
Opens event. This scenario put 
teams through their paces and a 
seamless performance from City 
duo Ingrid Smith and Nathan Scott 
had defending champions Christine 
Burke and Katie Schutze on the 
edge of their seats whilst waiting 
for the results. But it wasn’t quite 
enough and Katie and Christine 
took home the gold whilst the silver 
went to Nathan and Ingrid just ten 
points – less than 1% – behind. 

With most members unable to 
travel for the Aussies, it was a short 
season for the First Aid team, but a 
promising one for the future of the 
competition in the state. 

City’s Lifesaving Team is as-ever 
indebted to the parents, friends 
and club-members that continue to 
donate their time and skills in the 
form of officiating, scenario-writing 
and acting so that competitions 
can run. Special thanks to my co-
coach Christine Burke and First 
Aid State Championships Head 
Referee Natalie Law who both put 
countless volunteer hours into the 
competition this season. 

Katie Schutze
Coach

The ongoing education and 
requalification of club members is 
one of the most critical areas of 
Club operations and 2018/19 season 
has seen fantastic performances 
from a dedicated team of Trainers, 
Assessor and Administrators. 
 
Steve Reynolds did a mighty job 
coordinating and recording the 
early season bulk proficiencies for 
SRC and Bronze members, ably 
assisting many of our dedicated 
Club Trainers and Assessors.

Natalie Law stepped up and 
trained the first Bronze group for 
the season (17 candidates) whilst 
Mike Darragh (assisted by Bridget 
Darragh, Sonia Read and Cat Read) 
followed up and trained the second 
group of the season (10 candidates). 
A huge thanks to all of our Trainers.

Graham Wimbridge and Heath 
McCabe took on the Surf Rescue 
Certificate training this season with 
fantastic results for the Youth and 
Nipper parents.

The IRB/RWC section of the Club 
has continued to flourish under the 
current leadership group, and many 
members would have noticed the 
welcome addition of jet skis (RWC) 
to the beach. 

Congratulations to all 7 of our newly 
qualified operators who trained 
through some miserable winter 
conditions, much of which was 
down at Secret Harbour, to achieve 
these Awards. IRB Driver and Crew 
numbers continue to increase 
steadily providing our patrols 
with increased capabilities.

Our focus during the off-season and 
for next season is an improvement 
in the frequency of courses and the 
upskilling of patrolling members 
with additional awards such as 
Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 
and Pain Management Courses. 
Keep an eye out for a new training 
course calendar in the near future. 
We must also focus on developing 
new trainers and assessors within 
the Club to ensure that we can 
continue to deliver a high level of 
skills training into the future.

Phil Green and Matthew Slattery
Education Officers
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100 DOLLAR PLUS CLUB 
BUSINESS DIRECTORY

Thank you to our 100 DOLLAR 
PLUS CLUB members. Your 
contribution makes a big 
difference to the safety and 
community of City Beach.

With sincere appreciation,
City of Perth SLSC.

100 DOLLAR PLUS CLUB

MILESTONES

Our goal for the 100 DOLLAR PLUS 
CLUB in the 2018/19 season was to 
raise $10,000 to assist with beach 
operations. We set four separate 
$2,500 milestones to celebrate 
when our 100 DOLLAR PLUS CLUB 
grows to smash the donation 
targets. Unfortunately we did not 
reach our goal, however we have 
created a foundation of support.

MILESTONE 1 - SHARK ALARM 
The funds from our first milestone 
were to be allocated to setup 
and install a shark alarm system. 
However, the Town of Cambridge 
advised us of their plan to 
undertake and fund this project. 
Due to their assistance, we are now 
able to allocate this money to our  
second milestone. 

MILESTONE 2 - FUEL AND 
MAINTENANCE FOR IRB AND  
JET SKIS 
Our second milestone was allocated 
to fuel and maintenance for our 
IRB and jet skis. With the additional 
beach visitation, our IRB operators 
have been run off their feet with 
rescues and preventative actions.  
It is expensive to keep these 
vehicles in the water but the IRBs 
and jet skis provide an integral 
service on our beach. 

MILESTONE 3 - YOUTH PROGRAM 
Our third milestone invested in our 
Youth program. We try to assist 
where possible in sending our 
Youth members to TOAD Camp 
and Rise Up Camp. These camps 
teach valuable surf, leadership, 
and teamwork skills to the up and 
coming generation who will one 
day be managing our beach. 

MILESTONE 4 - NIPPER TRAILER 
Our fourth milestone was dedicated 
to our Nipper program to purchase 
a Nipper beach operation and 
competition trailer. This trailer 
will help store and move Nipper 
equipment on both Sunday Nippers 
and Nipper competitions. This 
trailer will ensure kids have the 
correct equipment available to them 
to develop and excel in the surf. 
We did not reach this milestone, 
however with additional grant 
application money we are looking  
to purchase our nipper trailer in 
winter of 2019.  

The 100 DOLLAR 
PLUS CLUB Business 
Directory has been 
designed for members 
to promote their local 
business. 

The initiative creates a network 
of businesses which have a 
common ground and accept social 
responsibility for the City of Perth 
Surf Life Saving Club.

Circulated to 1,800 members, the 
100 DOLLAR PLUS CLUB Business 
Directory will be included in City 
News each week for businesses to 
be supported by the City of Perth 
SLSC Membership and City Beach 
community.

To be included in this initiative, 
the Club ask businesses to make a 
bronze ($100) silver ($300) or gold 
($500+) donation to help the City 
of Perth SLSC provide the premium 
beach service we have become 
accustomed to since establishment 
in 1925.

With the new development of 
the City Beach precinct, beach 
visitation has increased by over 
300% in the last season. It is of 
most importance for our volunteer 
lifesavers to obtain the best 
equipment, training and education 
to keep the City Beach community 
and beach goers safe. 
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BRONZE DONORS

AVIVA PROPERTY 
Contact: Alison Smith 
Number: 0401 573 375 
Email: alison@avivaproperty.com.au

GREEN FINANCE BROKERS
Contact: Phil Green
Number: 0409 665 539
Email: phil@greenfb.com.au
www.greenfinancebrokers.com.au

LEICON NOTLEY
Contact: Geoff Leivers
Email: geoff@leiconnotley.com.au
www.leiconnotley.com.au

PEOPLE SOLUTIONS
Contact: Mark Greenwood
Number: 0412 997 750
Email: mgreenwood@people-solutions.com.au
www.people-solutions.com.au

TEAMWORKS DEVELOPMENT AUSTRALIA
Contact: Mal Lowther
Number: 0438 341 619
Email: mal@teamworksdevelopment.com.au
www.teamworksdevelopment.com.au

AVOCA INSURANCE BROKERS
Contact: Charlie Elders
Number: 0404 004 488 or 9387 8588
Email: celders@avoca.com.au
www.avoca.com.au

SOAR CONSULTING
Contact: Todd Bowler
Number: 0409 803 408
Email: tbowler@soarconsulting.com.au
www.soarconsulting.com.au

STATEWIDE OIL DISTRIBUTORS
Contact: Hayly Lim
Number: 0419 930 803
Email: haylyl@statewideoil.com.au
www.statewideoil.com.au

STEPHEN CARRICK ARCHITECTS
Contact: Stephen Carrick
Number: 0457 309 201
Email: stephen@stephencarrickarchitects.com.au
www.stephencarrickarchitects.com.au

BENJAMIN HEWITT ORTHOPAEDIC SURGEON
Contact: Benjamin Hewitt
Number: 08 9322 1990
Email: hewittbj@bigpond.net.au
www.drbenjaminhewitt.com.au

FORCE REAL ESTATE
Contact: Rory Trotter
Number: 0411 592 602
Email: rory@forcerealestate.com.au
www.forcerealestate.com.au

JUROVICH SURVEYING
Contact: Gordon (Flash) Jones
Number: 0401 693 900
Email: gjones@jurovichsurveying.com.au
www.jurovichsurveying.com.au

WA AGED CARE FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS
Contact: Andrew Hopkins
Number: 1300 827 229
Email: info@agedcarefswa.com
www.agedcarefswa.com

THE ELIZABETH CLINIC
Contact: Julia Feutrill
Number: 0430 355 226
Email: jafeutrill@icloud.com
www.elizabethclinic.com.au

SILVER DONORS

GOLD DONORS
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Renowned for challenging 
conditions, this year’s Aussies at 
Broadbeach on the Gold Coast in 
Queensland was no exception. With 
a smaller than normal but very 
enthusiastic water and beach team, 
we took on the East Coast with 
excitement and some trepidation.

In the female arena we had 
some outstanding results in the 
youth, starting with the Under 15 
Champion Lifesaver with Sophie 
Baron-Hay and Grace Young. Under 
14 Sophie Baron-Hay and Under 
15 Alexandra Slocombe showed 
fantastic promise in their respective 
Surf Race Finals. We were flying in 
the sand as highlighted in Leigh 
Buchan’s Beach Sprint report. The 
youth were very well represented in 
the Under 14’s with all competitors 
making a semi-final, we are really 
excited about the future! 

The very competitive open female 
arena was again an inspiring place 
to be with Veteran and youth 
runners providing excellent results. 
City flexed its muscles on the beach 
with some inspiring running results, 
displaying the depth of the squad 
and the quality of coaching in the 
beach arena.

After two days with very few events 
run due to the large swell, this 
resulted in our Under 19 girls Kalani 
Scott and Sophie Lloyd and our 
Under 17 boys Ben Colliss and Kirby 
Jackson needing to move to a new 
competition location at North Kirra.

In the open male water arena 
Max Anderson Loake started the 
campaign with a Bronze in the 
Champion Lifesaver; Ethan Jackson, 
Matthew Colliss and Riley Walker 
combined to make both the Under 
19 Taplin and Board Relay Finals 
facing some massive waves 
along the way.

The Surf Boats had an exceptional 
result with what is understood to 
be a first female boat medal at 
the Aussies for the Club winning 
Bronze. It was an exhilarating 
competition with sweep Geoff 
Wilson skilfully guiding them 
through many rounds in 
the large surf.

Our very able masters competitors 
also had some outstanding results 
with several medals in individual 
and team events. All masters 
competing in their individual 
age categories. 

AUSSIE CHAMPIONSHIPS 
TEAM MANAGER REPORT

We had excellent representation 
in the March Past, ably led by Ian 
Scott, with Angela Razvi flying in 
at the last minute to support the 
experienced team.

We must make special mention of 
Brett Wakefield who completed all  
8 IRB shifts allocated to City 
of Perth. The challenging surf 
conditions make his efforts even 
more remarkable. Georgia Williams 
and Paige Bajada also assisted as 
his crew for some of these shifts 
prior to competing themselves.  

Our athletes could not compete 
without the IRB support for which 
we are most thankful.

The event again would not have 
been possible without the help of 
our volunteers who give up many 
hours of their personal time:- 
particular thanks to Surf Sports 
Director - Linda Walker; Team 
Managers – Ashley Nesbit, Linda 
Jackson, Sharan Colliss, Nicky 
Scott, Glen Boddy; Coaches and 
support staff – Andrew Walker 
(Wal), Rick Turner, Leigh Buchan, 

Ian Scott, Geoff Wilson, Murray 
Hughes and Eddie Gibbs; and all  
our amazing competitors, parents 
and supporters. 

We are now looking forward to 
next year’s Aussies which is again 
at Broadbeach in Qld and taking a 
larger team to enjoy all the fun – 
bring on winter training!

Rob Walker
Team Manager

HISTORIAN / ARCHIVIST REPORT

Whilst we are continuing to sort 
through historical items and 
records, we are mindful of ensuring 
all current material is kept for 
the future. This includes minutes, 
reports, financial statements, 
trophies and photographs etc.

This season we have put together 
displays recognising the club’s 
achievements in Rescue and 
Resuscitation, and the history of 
Club Teams. Storage and display 
of the Club’s history is a priority 
at all times and we encourage 
the donation of any items of 
Club history from current and 
previous members.

Thanks go to Kevin McRae for his 
donation of photos, articles and the 
Australian Championships poster 
from 1971. SLSWA have loaned the 
Club the large photo of the 1935 
clubrooms that is currently in the 
Reception area.

Sue and Ian Scott 
Club Historians
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STATE TEAM SELECTION

WESTERN SUNS STATE TEAM 
Our club had several competitors 
selected for the Western Suns State 
Team and WA State Development 
Team. The State Team finished on 
the podium in third place.

City of Perth members selected 
for the WA State Team were: Kiera 
Albertsen, Sophie Lloyd, Kalani 
Scott, Max Anderson-Loake, Riley 
Walker, Ethan Jackson, Matthew 
Colliss, Todd Bowler, Shane Bowler, 
John Foster, Marc Goodall, Stephen 
Bowler, Nicole Cooper, Susan 
Estreich, Elizabeth Mair, Kathleen 
Unwin, and Geoff Wilson.

WA State Development Team 
competed at the Freshwater & 
Manly Carnivals in January 2019.  
5 City members were selected as 
part of this squad. Congratulations 
to: Nathan Hunt, Owen Lilleyman, 
Alice Williams, Imogen Herrington, 
and Alexandra Slocombe.

Most Promising U14 
Sophie Baron-Hay

Most Promising U15 
Imogen Herrington

Most Promising U17 
Thomas Noordzy

Most Enthusiastic U19 
Paige Bajada

Most Outstanding Contribution 
to the IRB/RWC area 
Carl Wheeler

Most Enthusiastic U19 
Ingrid Smith

Coach of the Year 
Leigh Buchan

Boat Person of the Year 
Stephen Bowler & 
Geoff Wilson

Best Patrol Team 
Kiera Albertsen

Patrol Member of the Year 
Brittany Huitenga

Instructor of the Year 
Natalie Law

Club Member of the Year 
Arthur Bajada

President’s Medal 
Phil Green

CLUB TROPHIES AND AWARDS

Event Crew Result
Open Male Surf Boat Patrick Anderson Loake; James Abbott; Jack Reddrop; 

Mundawae Sanderson-Green; Bruce Lilburne (Sweep)
1st

Open Male Surf Boat Shane Bowler; Todd Bowler; Marc Goodall; John Foster; 
Christopher Lebesmuehlbacher (Sweep)

3rd

U23 Female Surf Boat Phoebe Ralph; Ingrid Smith; Lauren Hutton; Sarah Viney; 
Patrick Anderson Loake (Sweep)

2nd

U19 Female Surf Boat Paige Bajada; Taylah Horsham; Chloe Hogan; Georgia 
Williams; Thomas Lowther (Sweep)

1st

2018/19 WA SURF BOAT SPRINT CHAMPIONSHIPS

2019 AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS -  
OPEN & MASTERS

2018/19 STATE ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
Open Female Surf Boat 
Nicola Cooper; Elizabeth Mair; 
Kathleen Unwin; Brittany Wickstead; 
Geoffrey Wilson (Sweep)

160 Minimum Male Surf Boat 
Shane Bowler; Todd Bowler; John 
Foster; Marc Goodall; Stephen 
Bowler (Sweep)

U16 Male Beach Run (4km) 
Jackson Blom 

SILVER MEDALLISTS
Open Male Surf Boat 
Patrick Anderson Loake;  
Mundawae Sanderson-Green;  
Jack Reddrop; Cameron Wilshaw; 
Bruce Lilburne (Sweep)

U15 Female Swim Race (2km) 
Mia Jackson

45-54 Male Beach Run (2km) 
Andrew Walker

 
 
 
 
 
 

BRONZE MEDALLISTS 
U15 Female Swim Race (2km) 
Mia Nesbit

U16 Male Beach Run (4km) 
Rory Mitchell

U15 Male Beach Run (4km) 
Dylan Poole

GOLD MEDALLISTS
130 yrs Female Surf Team 
Sharan Colliss; Nicola Scott; 
Linda Jackson

50-54 Female Surf Race 
Sharan Colliss

45-49 Female Board Race 
Nicola Scott

SILVER MEDALLISTS 
55-59 Male 2km Beach Run 
Andrew Walker

50-59 Female Ocean Swim 
Sharan Colliss 

 
 
 

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
U19 Female Surf Boat 
Paige Bajada; Chloe Hogan; Taylah 
Horsham; Georgia Williams; Geoff 
Wilson (Sweep) 

Open Male Champion Lifesaver 
Max Anderson Loake

130 yrs Female Taplin Relay 
Sharan Colliss; Nicola Scott; 
Linda Jackson
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2019 JUNIOR STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
U13 Male Beach Relay 
Ryan De Marchi; Ethan Nguyen; 
Chalie Trew; Rory Wallace

U13 Male Beach Flags 
Rory Wallace

U12 Female Cameron Relay 
Shayla Keane; Sophie Munday; 
Angela Williams; Hannah Young

U12 Female Surf Race 
Angela Williams

U12 Male Surf Race 
David Webster

U12 Male Beach Sprint 
Hamish Fraser

U11 Male Surf Teams 
Jack Dickie; Harry Eaton; 
FelixHills; Archie Ryan

U11 Female 1km Beach Run 
Sienna Hathrill

U11 Male Cameron Relay 
Jack Dickie; Jake Jolly;  
Archie Ryan; Toby Swart

U10 Male Surf Teams 
Taj Dorrington; Lucas Landers; 
Cameron McKay; Tighe O’Toole

U10 Female 1km Beach Run 
Sasha Pallis

SILVER MEDALLISTS
U13 Mixed 2 Person R & R 
Jorja Van Pelt; Emma Rogers

U13 Female Beach Flags 
Jorja Van Pelt

U12 Female Surf Teams 
Lucy McDermid; Angela Williams; 
Mimi Wormald; Hannah Young

U12 Female Board Rescue 
Hannah Young; Angela Williams

U12 Male Beach Relay 
Hamish Fraser; Jasper Van Ast; 
Kael Wallace; Patrick Woods

U11 Male Beach Relay 
Jack Dickie; Felix Hills; 
Declan King; Zy Woodham

U11 Male Surf Race 
Zy Woodham

U10 Male Beach Relay 
Zachary Harold; Lucas Landers; 
Joshua McGlew; Conan Walker

U10 Female Beach Relay 
Leah Jorgensen; Eliza Munday; 
Sasha Pallis; Matilda Robinson

U10 Male Surf Race 
Tighe O’Toole

U10 Male 1km Beach Run 
Lucas Landers

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
U13 Female Surf Race 
Telani Woodham

U13 Male Beach Sprint 
Ethan Nguyen

U11 Male Board Rescue 
Jack Dickie 
Archie Ryan

U11 Ironman 
Zy Woodham

U11 Male Surf Race 
Archie Ryan

U10 Male Cameron Relay 
Taj Dorrington; Zachary Harold; 
Tighe O’Toole; Conan Walker

U10 Female Cameron Relay 
Elysia Begovich; Leah Jorgensen; 
Eliza Munday; Sasha Pallis

U10 Ironman 
Tighe O’Toole

OVERALL POINTS
Trigg Island 340 
Sorrento 317
Cottesloe 240
City of Perth  195

2018/2019 STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
Open Mixed First Aid 
Christine Burke; Katherine Schutze

Open Male Champion Lifesaver  
Max Anderson Loake

Open Male Rescue Tube Rescue 
Benjamin Carrick; Simon Huitenga; 
Max Anderson Loake; Jack Retty

Open Male Board Rescue 
Ethan Jackson; Riley Walker

Open Male Surf Race 
Max Anderson Loake

Open Male Board Race 
Matthew Colliss

Open Female Beach Relay 
Brittany Huitenga; Emily Longo; 
Jacqueline Lord; Gabrielle Murphy

Open Female Beach Sprint 
Brittany Huitenga

Open Female Beach Flags 
Gabrielle Murphy

U23 Female Surf Boat 
Lauren Hutton; Phoebe Ralph; Ciara 
Taylor; Sarah Viney; Bruce Lilburne 
(Sweep)

U19 Female Surf Boat 
Paige Bajada; Chloe Hogan; Taylah 
Horsham; Georgia Williams; Mal 
Lowther 

U19 Female Short Course Surf Boat 
Paige Bajada; Chloe Hogan; Taylah 
Horsham; Georgia Williams; Mal 
Lowther 

U19 Male Taplin Relay 
Matthew Colliss; Ethan Jackson; 
Riley Walker

U19 Male Board Relay 
Matthew Colliss; Ethan Jackson; 
Riley Walker

U19 Male Board Rescue 
Ethan Jackson; Riley Walker

U19 Male Double Ski 
Ethan Jackson; Riley Walker

U19 Male Single Ski Relay 
Laine Andrew; Ethan Jackson; Riley 
Walker

U19 Ironman 
Riley Walker

U19 Male Board Race 
Riley Walker

U19 Male Single Ski 
Ethan Jackson

U19 Female Surf Race 
Sophie Lloyd

U19 Female Board Race 
Sophie Lloyd

U17 Female Beach Flags 
Mia Fraser

Youth Female Cameron Relay 
Sophie Baron-Hay; Holly Fraser; 
Imogen Herrington; Alexandra 
Slocombe

Youth Female Surf Teams 
Sophie Baron-Hay; Mia Jackson; 
Alexandra Slocombe; Alice Williams

Youth Female Beach Relay 
Holly Fraser; Sienna Greig; Imogen 
Herrington; Charlotte McDermid

U15 Female Beach Sprint 
Imogen Herrington

U14 Ironwoman 
Sophie Baron-Hay

U14 Female Beach Flags 
Holly Fraser

SILVER MEDALLISTS
Open Mixed First Aid  
Nathan Scott; Ingrid Smith

Open Mixed Surf Boat Relay 
James Abbott; Patrick Anderson 
Loake; Paige Bajada; Melissa Brown; 
Ashlee Connell; Chloe Hogan; 
Taylah Horsham; Honor Lane; Bruce 
Lilburne; John Leivers; Mal Lowther; 
Elizabeth Murray; Jack Reddrop; 
Mundawae Sanderson-Green; 
Georgia Williams 

Open Male Taplin Relay 
Max Anderson Loake; Benjamin 
Carrick; Matthew Colliss; Simon 
Huitenga; Ethan Jackson; Riley 
Walker

Open Male Surf Teams 
Max Anderson Loake; Matthew 
Colliss; Simon Huitenga; Jack Retty

Open Male Board Relay 
Max Anderson Loake; Matthew 
Colliss; Riley Walker

Open Female Board Race 
Sophie Lloyd

Open Female 2km Run 
Alison O’Toole

Open Female Beach Relay 
Mia Fraser; Alysse Priddis; Sophie 
Watts; Eliza Wilson

Open Female Beach Sprint 
Sophie Watts

U19 Male Board Relay 
Laine Andrew; Kirby Jackson; 
Joshua Snook

U19 Female Board Rescue 
Sophie Lloyd; Kalani Scott

U19 Ironwoman 
Sophie Lloyd

U19 Ironman 
Ethan Jackson

U19 Male Board Race 
Matthew Colliss

U19 Male Single Ski 
Laine Andrew

Youth Mixed First Aid 
Kate De Marchi; Alicia Jones

Youth Female Champion Lifesaver 
Sophie Baron-Hay

Youth Female Board Relay 
Sophie Baron-Hay; Mia Nesbit; 
Alexandra Slocombe
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2018/2019 STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS CONT

U15 Female Surf Race 
Alexandra Slocombe

U15 Female Beach Flags 
Imogen Herrington

U14 Female Board Race 
Sophie Baron-Hay

U14 Female Surf Race 
Alice Williams

U14 Male Surf Race 
Owen Lilleyman

U14 Female Beach Flags 
Charlotte McDermid

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
Open Mixed Lifesaver Relay 
[Board] Matthew Colliss; [Swim] 
Cody Baker; [Ski] Benjamin Carrick; 
[Run] Brittany Huitenga; [Boat] 
Nicole Cooper; Susan Estreich; 
Elizabeth Mair; Kathleen Unwin; 
Geoff Wilson

Open Female Surf Teams 
Emily Chetwin; Jessica Hallett; 
Tamsyn Ireland; Sophie Lloyd

Open Female Board Relay 
Kiera Albertsen; Sophie Lloyd; 
Nicola Scott

Open Ironwoman 
Sophie Lloyd

Open Ironman 
Max Anderson Loake

Open Female Beach Flags 
Brittany Huitenga

Open Male 2km Run 
Andrew Walker

U19 Male Surf Teams 
Cody Baker; Matthew Colliss; Ethan 
Jackson; Riley Walker

U19 Male Double Ski 
Joshua Snook; Laine Andrew

U19 Male Surf Race 
Matthew Colliss

U19 Ironman 
Matthew Colliss 
 
U19 Male Board Race 
Ethan Jackson

U19 Male Single Ski 
Ethan Jackson

Youth Male Board Relay 
Jackson Blom; Nathan Hunt; Owen 
Lilleyman

Youth Female Champion Lifesaver 
Grace Young

U14 Female Surf Race 
Sophie Baron-Hay

U14 Male Surf Race 
Nathan Hunt

U14 Male Board Race 
Nathan Hunt

OVERALL POINTS
Trigg Island 898
City of Perth 541  
North Cottesloe 355

2019 STATE MASTERS CHAMPIONSHIPS

2018-19 SUNSMART POOL RESCUE 
CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
40-44 Female Board Rescue 
Emily Chetwin; Sonya Read

40-44 Female Board Race 
Emily Chetwin

40-44 Female Single Ski 
Emily Chetwin

50-54 Female 2k Beach Run 
Joanna Kagi

55-59 Male 2k Beach Run 
David Caley

 
 
 
 
 

SILVER MEDALLISTS
30-35 Female Double Ski 
Emily Chetwin; Sonya Read

35-39 Ironwoman 
Emily Chetwin

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
130 yrs Male Surf Teams Race 
Glen Boddy; David Caley; Adrian 
Hirsch

40-44 Female Surf Race 
Emily Chetwin

45-49 Female 2k Beach Run 
Tania Shillington

GOLD MEDALLISTS
Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Zachary Brown

U17 Female 50m Freestyle 
with fins 
Madison Howe

SILVER MEDALLISTS
Male 100m Manikin Carry 
with fins 
Zachary Brown

U17 Female 100m Manikin 
Tow with fins 
Madison Howe

U17 Female 100m Manikin 
Carry with fins 
Madison Howe

 
 
 
 

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
Male 200m Obstacles 
Zachary Brown

Male 100m Manikin 
Tow with fins 
Zachary Brown

U17 Female 50m Manikin Carry 
Madison Howe

U15 Male 100m Manikin 
Carry with fins 
Thomas Noordzy

U15 Male 100m Manikin 
Tow with fins 
Thomas Noordzy

U15 Male 50m Freestyle 
with fins 
Thomas Noordzy

U15 Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Thomas Noordzy

COMBINED TEAM SCORES
1. Trigg Island 260
2. Fremantle 167  
3. North Cottesloe 167 
4. City of Perth 55
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PATROL INFORMATION

PATROL  CAPTAIN VICE-CAPTAIN VICE-CAPTAIN
1  I&S Scott Peter Johnson Denham Wimbridge-Glassford  
2  J&J Scott Gabrielle Murphy Aiden Murphy  
3  B Lilburne & P Waey Zoe Leunig Yasmeen Razvi  
4  M Lowther Brendon Entrekin David Caley  
5  J & G Leivers Rebecca Dunsdon Thomas Lowther  
6  W Jarman & K Hogg Jason Stoop Harry Osbourne George West 
7  G Mickle & P Andrew Daniel Scott Nicholas Scott  
8  R Harper Tom Wagstaff Shaun Jessop Laura Schuhkraft 
9  G Wilson Stephen Price Nathan Scott  
10  P Cohen Talia Jakubans Thomas Judd  
11  I (Smithy) McRae Mundawae Sanderson-Green Catherine Bell 
12  R King Christine Burke Ingrid Smith 
13  R Somerford Jolanta Hewitt Patrick Anderson-Loake 
14  W Gaynor Shelby Warren Cameron Wishaw 
15  R Groser Brittany Huitenga Zoe Huitenga 
16  L Buchan Montana Ardon Amy Murphy 
17  J Pouleris Emily Slattery Max Anderson Loake 
18  L Kelly David Scott Henry Bromfield 
19  G Trew Bridget Darragh Patrick Upton-Davis  
20  M Hughes Kiera Albertsen Sarah Viney 

LIFE SAVING AWARDS

PROFICIENCIES
Bronze Medallion – 286

Surf Rescue Certificate – 46

Nipper Rescue Certificate – 1

Advanced Resuscitation 
Certificate – 55

IRB Crew – 43

IRB Driver – 16

Resuscitation – 7

Junior Activities Competition 
Skills Evaluation & Preliminary 
Evaluation – 225 

Total Proficiencies – 679

 

 

NEW AWARDS
X Surf Rescue Certificate – 27

Bronze Medallion – 28

Silver Medallion Beach 
Management – 3

Nipper Rescue Certificate – 90

Advanced Resuscitation 
Certificate – 7

IRB Crew – 13

Silver Medallion IRB Driver – 6

Silver Medallion RWC  
Jetski) Operator – 7

Assessor (IRB) – 1

Resuscitation – 4

Training Officer Bronze 
Medallion – 1

Junior Activities Competition 
Skills Evaluation & Preliminary 
Evaluation – 441

Surf Aware One – 75

Surf Aware Two – 83

Surf Play One – 85

Surf Play Two – 70

Surf Safe One – 77

Surf Safe Two – 67

Surf Smart One – 41

Surf Smart Two – 46 

Total New Awards – 1172

PATROL HOURS

FULL NAME ALL PATROLLED HOURS

Daniel Abbondanza 1.25
James Abbott 28.25
Ben Adams 14.25
Nigel Adcock 2.5
Charli Aitkenhead 22.25
Kiera Albertsen 19
Simon Allison 4
Michael Ammann 27.17
Nicole Ammann 38
Stefan Ammann 2.25
Max Anderson Loake 26.83
Patrick Anderson Loake 20.98
Laine Andrew 24.75
Paul Andrew 4.92
Madeline Ardon 19.25
Montana Ardon 24
Jake Armstrong 9.5
Matthew Armstrong 15.25
Arthur Bajada 10.75
Luke Bajada 20
Paige Bajada 33.25
Rhys Bajada 28.75
Cody Baker 23.75
Sophie Baron-Hay 18.5
David Begovich 23
Catherine Bell 19
Peter Bennett 10.25
Amanda Bertoli 14.75
Vicki Bilro 9.5
Amelie Bishop 21
Tamsyn Black 9
Jackson Blom 4.75
Eliza Borrello 23.75
Joshua Boulton 14.5
Maelle Bourdais 46
Asha Bowen 1.5
Liam Bowman 21.25
Chelsea Boyanich 17.75
Rebecca Boyanich 19
Kaylene Bozich 14.17
Henry Bromfield 28.75
Chris Brown 33.5
Melissa Brown 14.25
Chris Browne 7
Andrew Buck 22.75
Christine Burke 16.5
Paul Burton 1.5
David Caley 25.83
Ethan Capolingua 9.25
Gretchen Carden 24.67
Jamie Carle 16.75
Rulan Carr 14.5
Elliott Carson 23.25
Adrian Casswell 3.75
Karl Cathcart 10

Alexandra Cavanagh 22.5
Martyn Cavanagh 38
Thomas Cavanagh 23.75
Raphael Chee 22
Simon Choo 16.25
Meng Houng Chroek 40
David Clyne 2.75
Ben Colliss 17.75
Matthew Colliss 19
Michael Colliss 2.25
Sharan Colliss 15.25
Ashlee Connell 23.75
Neil Constantine 24.25
David Cooley 28.58
Nicole Cooper 28.58
Chris Corbett 8.5
Sophia Coutts 9.5
Geoff Cowie 12
Jaxon Crabb 12.25
Julie Crawford 16.5
Katie Crofts 23
Alan Crossland 23.75
Andrew Cumming 2
Eoin Dalton 19.25
Rory Dalton 19
Bridget Darragh 19
Michael Darragh 19
John Davies 29.25
Kate De Marchi 30.25
Yves Dehouck 2.5
Samantha Denehy Johnson 7.25
Ella Dickie 27.25
Tim Dickie 6.5
Andrew Donaldson 28.5
Clayton Dorrington 7.5
Rebecca Dunsdon 23.75
Colin Dutton 1.58
Bailey Eastman 33.5
Kirby Eastman 20.5
Mark Eaton 18
David Egan 30
Tara Elders 15.5
Ashley Eldon 23.5
Kara Elliott 28.5
Tom Engelbrecht 22
Samantha England 24.08
Travis England 30.5
Brendon Entrekin 36.5
Matt Evans 14.5
Sandra Fay 16.25
Mark Ferguson 28.25
Murray Ferguson 23.75
Sharon Ferguson 23.75
Julia Feutrill 30.25
Sally Flavel 20

ian Fletcher 6.25
Leanne Fong 6
Paul Fong 10.25
Scott Foulsham 4.75
John Fox 21.75
Sandra Fox 10
Holly Fraser 16.25
Mia Fraser 26
Rebecca French 18.5
Don Frost 26.5
Martin Gallagher 15.5
Alexandria Gaynor 29
Philippa Gillman 4
Tarnica Golisano 16.25
Angus Gregg 9.5
Sienna Greig 14.25
Kerry Griffin 6
Mitchell Griffiths 4
Alyce Grulich 31.75
John Guilfoyle 189.25
Christopher Gwynne 24.5
Mary Gwynne 25.5
Jessica Hallett 3.75
Bruno Harray 19
Sharlene Hart 18
Ruth Harvey 4
Ryan Hathrill 4.25
Nathan Hawkesford 17
Chloe Hayes 4.75
Imogen Herrington 31.83
Paul Herrington 2
Beau Hewitt 23.5
Jane Hewitt 26.75
Jolanta Hewitt 30
Ciara Hillery 19
Scott Hills 10
Joshua Hodby 14.75
Chloe Hogan 5.5
Kevin Hogg 21.5
Michael Hogg 36.75
Anthony Holt 20.5
Andrew Hopkins 34
Hannah Hopkins 23.75
Emilia Horn 27
Taylah Horsham 35.25
Madison Howe 14
Brittany Huitenga 19
Zoe Huitenga 19
Karin Hunt 4.5
Nathan Hunt 4.75
Kane Hutchinson 4
Rose Hutchinson 6
Katherine Hutton 19.25
Lauren Hutton 11.5
Joel Ireland 29
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PATROL HOURS CONT...

Tamsyn Ireland 16.25
Nicki Ivory 20
Ethan Jackson 23.75
Kirby Jackson 18.92
Linda Jackson 16.25
Mia Jackson 13.5
Talia Jakubans 20
Nathan James 10.25
Dan Jeffreys 23.83
Shaun Jessop 41.25
Neil Johnson 2
Peter Johnson 34.5
Alicia Jones 51
Daniel Jones 19
Gordon Jones 4.75
Anna Jorgensen 21.25
Thomas Judd 14.25
Matt Judkins 18.75
Joanna Kagi 23.75
Marina Kakuda Ng 19.25
Brendan Kavanagh 13.17
Matilda Keens 34.5
Damien Kelly 10
Grace Kent 46.5
Andrea King 23
Aston King 24
Jessica Knight 18
Thomas Knight 26.17
Aria Kyriakou 23.75
Julian Kyriakou 23.75
Grant Landers 14.5
Honor Lane 14
Romi Lawlor 20
Fred Le Messurier 22.5
Joshua Leaman 19.75
Christoph Lebesmuehlbacher 24.25
Alyssa Lee 14.25
John Leivers 4.25
Zoe Leunig 23.75
James Lewin 23.5
Hallie Liggins 14.5
Drew Lilleyman 14.25
Owen Lilleyman 11.5
Rory Litchfield 4.75
Sophie Lloyd 30.5
Helen Loake 12.75
Kalani Locke 28.25
Ralph Longhorn 26
Emily Longo 13.75
Jacqueline Lord 20
Michael Lorraine 34.33
Michael Lowry 23.75
Thomas Lowther 16.83
Robert Lyon 12
Ben Lyons 24

Gary Mack 4
Elizabeth Mair 23.75
Tom Mascall-Browne 9
Heath McCabe 46.75
Zai McCabe 25.75
Luke McCarter 20
Charlotte McDermid 13.25
Rohan McGlew 23.25
Brett McIntosh 2.75
Lyn McKay 8.5
Stuart McKay 12.5
Shannon McLaren 22.25
James McNiff 14.25
Jessica Meloncelli 15
James Merrillees 16.5
Louise Merrillees 2
Josh Mewburn 9.5
Andrzej Meysner 24
Larissa Meysner 14.25
Olivia Mickle 20.5
Abigail Minchin 21
Aaron Minervini 4.75
Dean Mitchell 8.25
Erin Mitchell 19
Rory Mitchell 18.75
Shannon Mitchell 18.75
Ella Morison 14.25
Samuel Morison 33.25
Holly Murdoch 25.25
Aiden Murphy 20.75
Amy Murphy 24
Gabrielle Murphy 24.75
Elizabeth Murray 23.75
Gary Namestnik 19
Mia Nesbit 14
Minh H Nguyen 4
Holly Noack 4.75
Thomas Noordzy 51.58
Peter Ogonowski 8
Grant Oldfield 19.5
Harry Osbourne 29.25
Megan O’Sullivan 9.5
James O’Toole 10
Alex Pallis 4
Amberley Parker 34.5
Stephen Parker 33.5
Dan Paton 2
Dean Paton 10.25
Nicholas Payne 2.5
Todd Pearson 19.75
Grant Peoples 4.75
Harper Phillips 8
Nathan Phillips 2
Andrew Pollard 22.33
Mark Pollard 2

Dylan Poole 19
Stephen Prince 29
Nicholas Prosser 6
David Pusey 8
Phoebe Ralph 17.5
Angela Razvi 2.25
Ayesha Razvi 23.75
Farook Razvi 38.75
Rasheeka Razvi 14.25
Yasmeen Razvi 28.5
Bruce Read 5.16
Catriona Read 17.42
Anthea Redding 8
Jack Reddrop 12
Jack Retty 14.25
Stephen Reynolds 16.25
Stewart Rhodes 23.25
Cleve Riches 6
Marc Riera 4
Daniel Roberts 22.25
Lachlan Roberts 13.25
Ben Rogers 39.5
Damian Rooney 14
Lila Rooney 2
Lisette Rooney 2
Hamish Ryan 18.75
Patrick Ryan 14.5
Wayde Salfinger 10
Linda Salleo 23.5
Michael Sanderson-Green 24
Mundawae Sanderson-Green 23.75
Matt Santich 27
Benjamin Schuhkraft 16.5
Brigitte Schuhkraft 3.25
Laura Schuhkraft 28.5
Katherine Schutze 17
Benjamin Scott 28.5
Daniel Scott 24.25
David Scott 30.25
Jeffrey Scott 6.25
Kalani Scott 7.33
Nathan Scott 30.25
Nicholas Scott 28.5
Peter Scott 4.5
Tiger Scott 4.75
Mitchell Sellars 19
Jason Shaw 20.75
Nancy Shaw 25
Ryan Shepherd 25.83
Tania Shillington 12.75
Sara Shular 29
Cameron Silvia 11.25
Gerrard Simeons 12.75
Emily Slattery 19.08
Alexandra Slocombe 19.83

PATROL HOURS CONT...

FULL NAME ALL PATROLLED HOURS

Alex Smedley 23.75
Ava Smedley 18.75
Alison Smith 14.5
Ingrid Smith 14.25
Stephen Smith 8
Joshua Snook 22.25
Amelia Speer 14.5
Natalie Speer 5
Timothy Speer 15.75
Tim Stafford 2
George Stewart 37
Jack Stewart 18.42
Mark Stewart 8
Jason Stoop 23.75
Andrew Streeton 16.5
Kane Suchenia 28.75
Hayley Swart 23.75
Mikaela Swart 25.25
Tim Swart 30
Samuel Tacey 19
Ciara Taylor 28.75
Derril Tennant 10
James Thomas 26.5
Nicola Thomas 21.23
John Tolcher 19
Grant Trew 9
Rory Trotter 4.75
Jillian Unsworth 2
Kathleen Unwin 20.5
Patrick Upton-Davis 16.25
Isabel Vaillancourt 14.25
Peter Van Bruchem 26.5
Simon Van Den Berg 14
Chris Van Maanen 7
Sarah Viney 38.5
Mark Wagstaff 2
Nicholas Wagstaff 17.42
Thomas Wagstaff 23.75
Brett Wakefield 31.75
Andrew Walker 1
Dolce Walker 23.75
Isabella Walker 15.25
Riley Walker 23
Heather Wallace 16
Annabelle Warden 14.25
Greg Warren 9.25
Shelby Warren 19
Ryan Webb 14
Andrew Webster 6
Elinor Webster 36.5
Sinan Wehrli 32
Tiziano Wehrli 26.5
George West 40.25
Darren Westphal 17.17
Carl Wheeler 65.5

Becky White 4
Alice Williams 19.75
Georgia Williams 26.25
Patrick Williams 23.5
Simon Williams 32.5
Geoffrey Wilson 2.25
Helen Wilson 7
Graham Wimbridge 35.08
Denham Wimbridge Glassford 35.82
Haden Wimbridge Glassford 9.5
Cameron Wishaw 35.25
Charles Worthington 14.25
Sophie Wulff 16
Grace Young 18.75
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2019  

 

1 

 

 Note 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 
Revenue 4 879,343 824,224 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  (150,953) (142,748) 
Membership  (25,780) (24,176) 
Administration expenses  (65,825) (91,837) 
Member lounge and shop expenses  (88,760) (34,028) 
Lifesaving and Education  (12,178) (21,183) 
Competition  (43,049) (39,125) 
Juniors and Youth  (24,356) (28,738) 
Finance costs  (44,992) (45,374) 
Fundraising  (1,157) (239) 
Facilities  (128,853) (149,682) 
Events and promotions  (20,723) (18,286) 
Employee benefits expense  (282,930) (153,339) 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year  (10,213) 75,469 

Other comprehensive income    

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  - - 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 

Other comprehensive surplus for the year, net of tax  - - 

Total comprehensive surplus / (deficit) for the year  (10,213) 75,469 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 APRIL 2019

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Financial Position 
30 April 2019 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
2 

 Note 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 

ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents 5 245,036 212,008 
Trade and other receivables 6 11,911 25,007 
Other Assets  200  
Inventories  37,691 19,032 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  294,838 256,047 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Property, plant and equipment 7 879,267 1,025,301 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 
879,267 1,025,301 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,174,105 1,281,348 

LIABILITIES    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade and other payables 8 46,190 34,824 
Employee benefits 10 14,456 11,164 
Deferred income  49,286 61,809 
Other financial liabilities 9 98,509 142,059 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  208,441 249,856 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Other financial liabilities 9 210,000 265,615 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  210,000 265,615 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  418,441 515,471 
NET ASSETS  755,664 765,877 
 

EQUITY    
Retained earnings  755,664 765,877 
TOTAL EQUITY  755,664 765,877 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2019 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
3 

2019 Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
Balance at 1 May 2018 765,877 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (10,213) 

Other comprehensive income - 

Balance at 30 April 2019 755,664 
 

 
2018 Retained 

Earnings 
$ 

Balance at 1 May 2017 690,408 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 75,469 

Other comprehensive income - 

Balance at 30 April 2018 765,877 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2019 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
4 

 Note 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 

    

    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Receipts for members and customers  879,916 814,063 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (720,858) (548,362) 

Interest paid  (21,945) (14,908) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  137,113 250,793 

  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (4,919) (45,082) 

Net cash used by investing activities  (4,919) (45,082) 

  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Repayment of borrowings  (99,166) (106,141) 

Proceeds from borrowings  - - 

Net cash used by financing activities  (99,166) (106,141) 

  
  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held  33,028 99,570 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  212,008 112,438 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 245,036 212,008 

  
  

 

\
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2019 

 

5 

 

The financial statements cover City of Perth SLSC Inc as an individual entity. City of Perth SLSC Inc is a not-for-profit 
Association incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act (WA) 2015 ('the Act'). 

The principal activities of the Association for the year ended 30 April 2019 were 
• To maintain efficient patrolling of the beach under the control of the Club.  
• To ensure the most effective methods of rescuing persons in distress, and the resuscitation of the apparently 

drowned by study and practice of the methods of Surf Life Saving as taught by "Surf Life Saving Australia Limited".  
• To provide for the recreational, social, sporting and educational needs of the members.  

The functional and presentation currency of City of Perth SLSC Inc is Australian dollars. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Committee of Management on 29 May 2019. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

1  Basis of Preparation  

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the 
Australian Accounting Standards – Related Disclosure Requirements and the Act. 

 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Leases  

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 
charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.  

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the life of the lease term. 

(c) Revenue and other income  

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria relating to the type of 
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of 
returns, discounts and rebates. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

 Sale of goods   

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2019 

 

6 

 

and rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods. 

 Grant revenue   

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity 
obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity 
and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back 
to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the 
statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the 
grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

City of Perth SLSC Inc receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for 
zero or a nominal value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the statement of 
financial position, with a corresponding amount of income recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 Government grants   

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all grant conditions will be met. Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income over 
the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating. Grants relating to assets are 
credited to deferred income at fair value and are credited to income over the expected useful life of the asset on 
a straight-line basis. 

 Donations   

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

 Interest revenue   

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 Rendering of services   

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services 
can be estimated reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services 
is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period. 

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised 
that are recoverable. 

 Gain on disposal of non-current assets   

When a non-current asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with its 
carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss. 

 Other income   

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it. 

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2019 
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Leases  

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 
charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.  

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the life of the lease term. 

(c) Revenue and other income  

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria relating to the type of 
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of 
returns, discounts and rebates. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

 Sale of goods   

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks 
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and rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods. 

 Grant revenue   

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity 
obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity 
and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back 
to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the 
statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the 
grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

City of Perth SLSC Inc receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for 
zero or a nominal value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the statement of 
financial position, with a corresponding amount of income recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 Government grants   

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all grant conditions will be met. Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income over 
the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating. Grants relating to assets are 
credited to deferred income at fair value and are credited to income over the expected useful life of the asset on 
a straight-line basis. 

 Donations   

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

 Interest revenue   

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 Rendering of services   

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services 
can be estimated reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services 
is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period. 

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised 
that are recoverable. 

 Gain on disposal of non-current assets   

When a non-current asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with its 
carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss. 

 Other income   

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it. 
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(d) Borrowing costs  

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(e) Goods and services tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables 
in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(f) Inventories  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration are valued at the current replacement cost as at the 
date of acquisition, which is the deemed cost. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment  

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. 

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired for nil or nominal consideration have been recorded at the 
acquisition date fair value. 

Where the cost model is used, the asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable. 

Assets measured using the revaluation model are carried at fair value at the revaluation date less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed whenever there is a 
material movement in the value of an asset under the revaluation model. 

 Plant and equipment    

Plant and equipment are measured using the revaluation model. 
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 Depreciation   

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets 
useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the 
lease or their estimated useful life. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below: 
Fixed asset class Depreciation rate 
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings  5% - 20%  
Competition Equipment  10%-20%  
Leasehold improvements  5% - 20%  

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

(h) Financial instruments  

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Association 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred). 

Financial Assets  

Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below: 

• loans and receivables; 

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characteristics 
of the instrument and its purpose. A financial instrument’s category is relevant to the way it is measured and 
whether any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in the ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’ line item respectively. 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers but 
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets. 

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision 
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss. 

The Association’s trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. 

Significant receivables are considered for impairment on an individual asset basis when they are past due at the 
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reporting date or when objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. 

The amount of the impairment is the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the 
future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable. 

In some circumstances, the Association renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead to 
changes in the timing of the payments, the Association does not necessarily consider the balance to be 
impaired, however assessment is made on a case-by-case basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other financial 
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Association uses derivative 
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these 
transactions. 

The Association‘s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease 
liabilities), which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  

Impairment of financial assets 

At the end of the reporting period the Association assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. 

Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all other impairment 
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset. 

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss. 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are 
presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

(j) Employee benefits  

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within 
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 
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3  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments  

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances. 

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates. 

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below. 

 Key estimates - receivables   

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of 
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not 
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date. 

 Key estimates - inventory   

Each item on inventory is reviewed on an annual basis to determine whether it is being carried at higher than its net 
realisable value. During the year, management have written down inventory based on best estimate of the net 
realisable value, although until the time that inventory is sold this is an estimate.  
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4  Revenue and Other Income  

  

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

Sales revenue    
- Membership fees  439,223 386,396 
- Sale of food, beverage and merchandise  121,137 40,155 

  560,360 426,551 

    

Other revenue    
- Donations and fundraising  29,692 52,756 
- Grants and sponsorship  81,739 118,303 
- Other trading revenue  206,506 225,554 
- Finance income  1,045 1,061 

  318,983 397,674 

Total Revenue  879,343 824,224 

 

5  Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash at bank and in hand  245,036 212,008 

  245,036 212,008 

6  Trade and Other Receivables  

CURRENT    
Trade receivables  11,911 23,650 
GST Receivable   1,357 

  11,911 25,007 
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7  Property, plant and equipment  

 

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

General and Office Equipment   
At cost 11,566 18,760 
Accumulated depreciation (11,566) (18,294) 

 0 465 

Competition and Lifesaving Equipment   
At cost 263,832 260,751 
Accumulated depreciation (214,072) (191,498) 

 49,760 69,252 

Gym Equipment   
At cost 243,469 243,467 
Accumulated depreciation (135,276) (86,582) 

 108,193 156,887 

Leasehold Improvements   
At cost 953,459 953,459 
Accumulated amortisation (232,145) (154,764) 

 721,314 798,695 

 879,267 1,025,301 

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts   

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and 
the end of the current financial year: 

 

General & 
Office 

Equipment 
$ 

Competition 
& Lifesaving 
Equipment  

$ 

Gym 
Equipmen

t $ 

Leasehold 
Improve- 

ments 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Year ended 30 April 2019 
     

Balance at the beginning of year 465 69,252 156,887 798,696 1,025,301 
Additions  4,921   4,921 

Depreciation expense (465) (24,413) (48,694) (77,381) (150,953) 

Balance at the end of the year 0 49,760 108,193 721,314 879,267 
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8  Trade and Other Payables  
    

  
 2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 
Current    
Trade payables  41,823 34,824 
GST payable  4,367 - 

  46,190 34,824 

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying 
amounts are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

9  Other Financial Liabilities  

CURRENT    
Rindle Pty Ltd (Maxima) loan  35,000 35,000 
Lease Liability Gym  63,509 107,059 

Total  98,509 142,059 

    

NON-CURRENT    
Rindle Pty Ltd (Maxima) loan  210,000 245,000 
Lease Liability Gym  - 20,615 

Total  210,000 265,615 

10  Employee Benefits  

Current   
Annual leave 14,456 11,164 

 14,456  11,164  

 

(a) Operating Leases   
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:    
- not later than one year  63,509 107,059 
- between one year and five years   20,615 

  63,509 127,674 

Operating leases are in place for gym equipment and normally have a term between 2 and 5 years. Lease 
payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals. 

 

11  Auditors' Remuneration  
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Remuneration of Optima Audit, for:   
- auditing the financial statements 4,000 4,000 

12  Contingencies  

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2019 

14  Events after the end of the Reporting Period  

The financial report was authorised for issue on 29 May 2019 by the Committee of Management. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Association in future financial years. 

15  Statutory Information  
 
The registered office of the association is: 

City of Perth SLSC Inc 
Challenger Pde 
City Beach  WA  6015 

 
The principal place of business is: 

Challenger Pde 
City Beach  WA  6015 
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In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 1 to 14:  
 
1.  Present fairly the financial position of City of Perth SLSC Inc as at 30 April 2019 and its performance for the year ended 

on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

 
2.  At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that City of Perth SLSC Inc will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they fall due. 
 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of the committee 
by: 

 

 

President ......................................................................................... 
 

 

 

Treasurer......................................................................................... 
 
 
 
Dated this .............................. day of May 2019 
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Independent Audit Report to the members of City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club Inc (the Entity), which comprises the statement of financial 
position as at 30 April 2019, the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements and the directors' declaration. 

 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, including: 

 
(i) giving a true and fair view of the Entity's financial position as at 30 April 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash 

flows for the year ended; and 
 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those  standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Entity 
in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical 
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 
 
Auditor's Independence Declaration 
 
To those charged with governance of City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club Inc 
 
As engagement partner of Audit of City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club Inc for the year ended 30 April 2019, I declare that, to the 
best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2018, there have been no contraventions of the code of conduct 
relating to independence in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional and 
Ethical Standards Board. 
 

 
 
 

Crunch Auditing 

 
31 May 2019 

 
 
 
Michael Cooper 

AUDITOR’S REPORT

48 to 62:
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